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At AGTL, the process of
indigenization had a fourth
dimension - TIME.

We achieved the
mandatory local content of
85% in just six years.

With 300+ supply chain
associates, import
subsituation runs into
several billions of rupees
every year,



44\We plan
forthe long
term and
always add
ValLIE. g,

Al-Ruttaim

Estabishad in the 18205 a5 a frading business, Al-Futtaim i one of the most progresshe regonal
busness housas headquarlered in Dubal, Unfed Arab Emikstes

Al-Futieim operates through more than 65 companies acroes sectors 85 dVErSe a5 CoMmImanoe,
Incustry and sendces, and amploys n excess of 20,000 peopla across tha LIAE, Babrain, Finvat,
Qman, Catar, Saudi Arabis, Bgyet, Pakistan: Srl Lanka, Syia, Singapors and
Eurnpe. Erfragreneunshin and 1Qoeous customes focus has enatied ALFUElT e,
fo grow it business by responding to Bhe changing nesds af e customers. .
an SOCEMERS in wihich I operadea Al-FURnim 8 commiliod o bﬂuﬂ\g
cistomens an unmvatied chooe of 1he woekd's best brands with exceptional
= oz of customer servige-and afler saies supDort

Shruciusi Mo seven cperalional dvisons: aulsmolive, slecimeics,
enginesring and technologes, mlal, fnancial sendces, pansaral seraces,
rea astate and joint yenlures, Al-Futtaim mainlains a decenialsad
appeoach, ghing ncikiual businesses Nexindty Bnd verssbity to
maintein & competitve stanca. This benafils employees, providng a
clearty defined work cullure where iIndhviduals are ampowensd with
aushanty and responsiiity 1or Thllr work

Al-Futtaim is the halding company of Al-Ghas Tractars Limited
with 50.02% shares




dnoufi amyow
HoWnInG usiming-iy ._mw

o G DMuCTUSL




Case Mew Holiand (ChH) i= a warld leadsr in the egricuftural and constniction equipment
buminass.

CHH Industrial, & new Group created from ihe merger of Fliat industral and CNH Global, 15 a
sofid, major indusing! anterprise; & giobal ader in capital goods, uniting GNH's agriculturel and
constrection souipment opamtions with Meco trucks, commercial and specially vehiclkes mnd FPT
Inciugirial's broad portiolio of powvertrain spplcations

From tracions and combines, socavalors, whool Ioaders, rucks, buses, ndighting and o
protection vehicles o powertrain sokitions for on and off road and marine, the Groun designa,
produces and sels ‘machines for work', Across s 11 brands, 64 manulectuning plants, 49
and development cenires, a workdoros of man than 68,000 people and some
CNH Indurstrial i present in 190 countries 'r.'l-; % I uriqu cormpalitive po

00

o

The Group has the fiexblity 1o pursue tha most advanisgeous et
noriLinities: for growdh and
I tha s

Bgic options and capiiaizs on
soliclation consitent with our ambilions for if 10 becomss o esader

ChH Industrial MY 5 Bsled on Be Now York Stock Exchang and on B MTA axchanga in Raly,

CNH holds 43.17% shares of Al-Ghad Tractors: Lim
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To Make AGTL a Symbol of Success.






with stabilty, profitabilty, brand strength

mitasion
ership a5 ha
lowas! cost FTI'HJIJ-I,F‘ of the highast
ﬂnnum_:;

v cusiomesr !:f.'a!‘l'y A

O frachors.

With comporate virtue, AGTL's mission

Ase exampls of
»d C'-ﬂl'pi.. Ete Govermance and
1hrru.tgl1 Camporat al Responsibilty
create mutually benaficial relationships
Ipetween the Comparny, Stakenoldars
and thir Cormmunilty,







Corporate
Focus

Tio acihieve evolution tfrough confinecus changs ~ the
chlrearabins b ep: 10 puUrsue LEAR BAAK&GENMENT: 1o
eliminaie all activibes wihich don't add valee; to eliminale
wiasie; 1o reduce costs; to lotus on a8l targel markets

W Tocus a0 continuicnsly aod Cusiamar can
centres to ghve filip to mechanization of farming In the
contry.




With Company’s Wislon that sats the destination in sight; the Company's
ki=sion, which is stiming, challenging, bekavable, and evolved through
consensus; Goals, Objectives, Action Plans, Roles and Responsiblities
cloarty clalired, S|ri,||{'|JN: F'I.‘!‘trlu';g af Al-Ghazl Traclors Lmibes] nlgr!x. i
actionakbie vision of the Company o reach optimal parformance.

Sound business plas arg culingd, Brainstormad and devsloped 1o
coondnate stralegies for overal success of tha Company.

With disciplined eflorts 1o produce fundamenial decisions and actions
Irak shapss and guide the Company with focus on ths fulure, Slrategc
Planning &t AGTL prowides the best wey to respond 1o clrcumstances of
I Company's ervironment, (b8 resources, and thus incorporating them
nic being conscously responsie 1o a dyramic changing environment.

Sirategic Flanning at Al-Ghas Tractors Limited supports strabegic
thinking and leads o strategic management - the basis for an eflective
organizaton.

Strategic
Planning




Core Values /
Ethical Principles

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited i a public mited company with 93.19% foreign

shareholding. The Compary with its supernior performance is recognized by all
stakeholders as economically rewarding to all parties, acknowlfedoed as being
ethicaly. ancialy and emirorrmentally responsible, welcomed By the communities,
businesses, customens in which it operates. It facifales economic, human
resources and community development within a stable cperating ervircnment.

The Directors believe *°
that they can make a
d|ﬁerence within their
sphere of influence.
us it envisaged .
that:

. Tha Company shoukd take a
leadership roke through
astablishment of athical business
prncioles,

That while refectng culttural
diverzity, 1he Company should do
business cansistent with tha
requirements of laws and
requlations in Pakistan.

The Comparty should show ethical
leadership.

The Comparty should facilitate the
achievemnen! of sound financial
resulls and a fair shaming of
economic banafits,



The Comparty miest have opan,
honest and transpanent
refationships, which ara
considened critical to the
Company's SUCCess.

Tha Compary should create a
business amaronment, wihch
mstigates against bribery and
cormuption and refrain from
participation in any comupt
business practices.

The Comparty should maintain
good relations with stakeholders

including contractors, suppliers
and other business activities.

Thia Compary ghould aspire for
stabifty and continuaus
Improvement within the operating
enironment.

Thia Comparry shoulkd pronida
protection of environment.

Thia Comparny shouid
promote community effiorts as
good conporale citzens.

The Comparry shouid ensure
consistency with labour laws,
standards, ensure health and
salety of workers and their rights.

Thi Comparry should promote
fraining and human rescurce
developrment as an engine for
growth with particular reference
10 the policy on sUCCesson
planning.

The Company has established a defined
code of ethics and business practice
wiich is signed by al directors as well as
employees of the Company.




Board of Directors
& Board Committees

Board of Directors

W& Chhirless Lsorisaed HUPE Mo Exesc v Chalmar

M. Parver A i Enacuthe Oilcey andd harnaier g Checis
W, B, AE Qayum nckeperciant MNon-Exnca e Docnor

M, Majd-uiAlam Syod Mo mouive Dencior

Wi, Kastel Leam Chied Firewrwing Otioe st Direcio

M. Gicrenria Barteei MorrEesouive Drectod

I, Wiohesie Lomibandi HorrEaoihe Deacion

Y, Darmiano Crotarcia M Esac v Diecion

Company Secretary

M= Sobakcn Tt

Beoard Commitbess

Audit Cammitteds

1, Bt A Clenpum Chmmnan, indepenciant Mon-Eancutve Bvector
o Mbegct-ui-Alremen Syed Wlermber, Mon-Eescuties Drecioe

W, Diarmiano Cretamin e, Mor-Enecuthe Diedas

Human Resciurcs and Remunaration Commities
W, Crewies Leonuen Hune Charmnan, Mon-Ewscoiae Dencior
Mot Folmd-ui-Ahsan Syed Member, MNon-Eecuttes Dreciorn
M. Gitroanna Bertiei Mernber, hor-Enecuthos Diecie
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Profile of
the Board Directors

o e L
et Charien Leonard Hord was apporsed) on fhe Bosnd n 2008

N Ohiriea Lisenaed HUP srved B8 T8 Non- B, ive Chaitman of e Boardl Ha
iy Feactss e Boands Human Rosourcs: and Remunonstion Commities. Ag Chairnion.
M. Hare is responsibln for leading the Board, seting i agonda and ensrng &
effectveness n o aspec of &= mis

A sammtrad BAomolhe prodessonal B Hunl g 1o -Gl Thecker sy vess of
Eepartics AN araianca N e sunmolsia sy of LK ana LISA. Ha s a0 Prascant
Faspmotve o A Futnim nng chars virous Boards of tha A Fussim Groug componcs

e was sducming ot Sheffeld Linkersty, UK

MR, PARVET ALl
T el Marmgpng Doy

Mok, Panass Al b bee associied vwith A5TL ancs B= sceion in 16683, He was
Epoonied CEO And Mansging DiEsciy of T Company n Jameany 1 0E2

K Prrves Al hoicn B Wasiers degree in Engreenng Aaminesraton from e Geage
Weesrangion Liniversiy in Weshnglon DC. He i sin s Ceariied Direciot o Priestan
= kAs ol Compomls Goeriacs POGL



a AL-GRATI TRACTORS LD
AGTL
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MR, M. ALI DAIVUM
okt Mo Bt Dectss

Ik I 0 e e v Bpcanienct B i) ncleenaten Dieucion on Decerniber O, 2014
nd chairs Thn Auckt Gommetis of Sho Boand

e b Feslionis Wlerribee ol e st ol Chertered Acoourtisnis: in Englard erd Wesies
Bl e Irsthile of Ohanteen Anoouniants of Paldstan.

Wi ower 30 ypars of Enoncial exponerco, ho has workad i anedrs 5Uch B0 susng,
TGRS MRS AN ACCLISRIONS, ek managemonl, simlegy. franchl planning ond
forecesting, Implementrion of BAFS prdl frencisl reporing. e hes weokesd in Hese
e i Paksisn, LAE, Cirresn and LG

MR, MAJD-UL-AHSAN BYED
HonrEscun Lirsctor

K. Mot ul-Anenn: Byed wes spporied man hon-Exeouyve Biector in 7073 Ha siso
sere on the Bomrd's Aot Commities and Humen Resooes snd Remunssston
Caminites

Ik Iisp posesses 10 years of Cchvarsn WO myaimencs in - Sois of Mansgormont
g Hurnan Resouroes. In ankidion o various peoleasional qualdomsons, Y. Mad ras
e v WA, from UL e Thas workesd! i variows issding pevete and musneonss
Cornpsnies. He hes et sssocsisd wil A-Futtiem Goup snce 2008,

MA. KASHIF LAWAI

Esrs e Doy sl CROH

Is¥. KBS Lowi vwind sopoirand 85 Ohid Francesl Oficar ond Draci on T Boad n
Z0T 1. He had cearer s ps Ohiof Femme Soesior o e Company,

bk Lesim stariesd tes professiorsl case m 1900 o AR Fergueson & Co, A memiber
ol the PaC netaoik. His expaients includes sendng Pakissn Refinery Limied &
Company Sacratary 5 Frencsl Conmiln,

Ha i Feliow Mermber of Instiuee of Chartered Accoureant of Paksstan and holds
& Magiers degras in Econarmics. He s a Certilad Dinscior from Pekastan inssiuie of
Cotforate Goernancs [ACG]
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M5, GIOVANNA BARBIER]
koon Ensrtim Cinmsr

his Grnerra Badtsen was appaaiied &8 s NorrEsstuthe Drecler n 20012 Shais dsc s
mesnbar of the Human Resounte and Remunenstion Com e,

Mis. B stortad horcoeer in ChH logal departmant in EBET mnd B pasently tha Vice
Presicers and Gerernl Courmal of the iIntemasornl Regon.

e o & L Dagrea Fom e Lnversty of Modena.

Oither engagements:

M Rl B p A Bay ~ Drecior

o G Compery Limied, Linfed Kingoom — Drecior
Cans rieraions Lirmiad, Unded Keodoim - Deschon
CHHFAMAZ Comrraiclal BY. Pusss — Desotd
CAHHRAMAT IndusTal BY, Russa = Drecion

ChH [China) anngement Co. Lid, Cning - Crecior

MA. MICHELE LOMBARDI
Hon Ewcdin Drscior

Ik Acheds Lomberd wns spportied on e Bosd of ASTL on Decsmber 08, 2014

He hiida sdegpes i Bechica Engreaning and Camputes Soiencs Gnd slan hoids &
g i Eoonomics hom e Masoachisoln instiLte of Tooh . UBA

g jorned ChiHFist Group mpns han & decsde ngo and hess held venogs senior posiions
N Commerciel, Busiress Developmentt and inoushisl opemstions. He & cutmenty wirkeng
5 Ragioral WD SEA, Pakderary and Jdspan




& AL-GRATI TRACTORS LD
AGTL

MR, DAMIAND CRETAROLA
b Enses iy Cinarses

N Dismiand Crevisria wes Bppoinied on fa Boeed 0 2012 s a MNon-Exec five Deacion
Ha s s 8 marmber of B ALt Comimieg

He joinen e Find Gioup i Lugnne, Switrerend: n 2004, st worsng with Fist Group
Iriernational SA ss Hasd of Adminisrston snd Conbiol Degariment, then serdng n the
Frarice Dapartrait of ChH Filssonal Sh, e subssclery ol ChH.

In o 2008 he emsumed resporsbity os § Chis! Accounting Oficer of GhH
remmionnl S4 mid in 2000 he wes apponted Chisf Francisl Oficer of Asn Paofic
Regpan of ChiFl imematonal

k. Dismianc Cratrd holls 8 degree 1 Busress Bronomics hois the Unberssy of
Frinoum, Swinoiand, and o Foedei Depioma 85 Canfiod Pubic Aqcourinnt bom o
"Aadermine L Wischafsprulung” of Jurch,

Other

Fiatt Switrestond B, Swittersnd — Vice Chasman

CHH Inirational SA. Swienand - Dinchor

ChH fcismiia FTY Linvied, fusyoin - Dencior

ki Sansres Thadand Limied, Thatand - Orecior

=y Hiollard HFT Jspan e, Japen - Dinacter

Case Mew Holand Machmneny Tiading {Shanghs] Co_ Limited, Crng — Diecior
CHH T ianagement Co. Lig, China « Dincior

Case Now Holiand Mechmany Harbin) Limind, Onia = Dirocior
Ehanghai Mew Holiang Agricutuml Machmeny Corp, Lid, China - Decior
e Faltane Fiest (incin) Pt Lid, indis — Chrecioe

ChEH Irterrional industsl Operstions B3, Metheriands - Diescion

CHH Indetial Comimesial Dperations BUY., Hetwerimaos — Dot
koo Dinmoiy Ticanm A 5. Tiakey = Diacior

heco Amc Soney Vo Toonet A5, Turey - Drecior

24
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1efL] of B2 Opetalone. cash kows and changes in
oLty

1 Propes bookss of socouris Feve been marrisred

o Appenprin acoouring polcies have Doen
OSSN [Rkod N prepaminion of franc
Fahamants Ganaf! or Changes Imeubing on
i appiication of mancens, ermencmeris of
rispiEshirs B exming Sandas Aoomubing
estirmetes ale baded or ieasorate and pudant
jigmenl,

d) Infemetoral Francinl Reporing Siarcias, o
Appkcabla N Pekasan, b boan Iokovwed in
prepaton of thea fnancial simements

&) Thit Sysiam of Ieme Do S S5 ) 08 &
hian beten sffectiondy et et B morfoned

# There se o sigriicent doulsts upon Se Cormpany's
abisy 10 conirue = R gong concem,

gl Tha Cormpayny Faa fully comgsiod) with th Listing
Repdation of T Kanohi ard Lanond Saock;
Enchanes.

Approprigthons:

For the yeer ended December 31, 2014, e Boad n
s mertng heid on Februy 12, 3005, has proposed
& fireyd cash deaciend of P, 15 per share amountng 1o
Fis, BES 40 million

2014 5]
Fupses 000
Pt o B 2251937 vt
“Taaaiont 77, 15 1851 .504]
Froi st fax 1,574,784 1,371 450
Other cormpyehensie noame: (RE515 -]
Toial comprebenstae Income o, S 200 1,300,087
Unapproorafeg proft o 7004277 671,00
ik s L aoptorae B5E0.S02 BT
Appropriation:
Firasl Chviciond e oy e your 513
Fis, 10 par sham 2012 Fn. 15 por shars) e 07 4,087
irferin chvicker o pesed ot e e 2014 _
Fis. 10 per sheve 2013 A= 10 per sherg) Erg.842 420 08
s of borus chares @ 35% 75,158 =
Urmppoprind proft of 7 amors oMt

Earnings per share
Tha Basic Earings per sere weed B2, 3717 n 2004
coampenad 1o R, 23668 n 2013,

Statement of value of Investments of
retlremant Tunds

Aot ity Errier]

Larntushy fures
Provaernd drd

120000000 dure 30, 2073
TEE TEE208 June 30, 20N

26

Key oparating and fimancial data
The ke Bt cfmerating &) francel iemns By e
B rind ey e By nciucied i B sl Bespodl.

Mestings of the Board of Directors

Five mestngs of the Booed of Disciors wose held during
e oy, Denals of amendance by each giocior o
PRGN this Annasl Feport

Pattern of Shareholding
The peatizet Of sharedaidng Fave et Ficilcad 0 s
Airwel Fapod,
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20714 has been a year of tumiilt. Froblems
kept racking up. From viral political
agitaticns o floods; from sundry other
unfonasaan chadandgs 1o 1 wiimale
disnupler of the lssues of support prices
of crops, the Gompany has continued to
Strugie and wend fis wiy through tough
markat eminonment.

Wi e [aning rom 1he Bk, o swilh

r 1 Iy RS ot FarTrn
Py hias beer: suffsning from ensms
safed. i is hand ko Mstala the significance
udagrb.dtlmna country which is primariy
agrarian, but some nascent signats nocate
that the agricuffure sactor continues 1o gip
unidar tha watch of the govemmant. While
there has hardly bean a polcy statement
Erom thia goernmaent thal would refoct the
sector being given a prionty, an enabling
emviroremant with policy initiatives also
SOME wanting, This wil wtirmalely rasult in
food scarcily and adversely ha the tarming
sector which is still the largesl sector of
the acanomy contributing 21% - thal 15
arouryd 5,000 billan rupeas = 1o e GOP of
Pakistan, and empioying ancund 53% of the
Il fonce, Continued negiect of e most

important sector of the sconomy would ba
a black eye for the countny.

Wilh tha BJF skl waming the government
of “significant risks” and “possibés revenues
shorfall™ facing the fragiln necoweny, Tha
agricutturs secior hungers for governmeant's
attention for national food securiy.

FIHANEML HE“E'H
track record m
.,.r|..f:| = eft a5 weall as wealth

MANGeTHn 'I'Iﬁ..tgh the Comgany has

undiar-pemormed Decause of exlernal
businass amdronmant beyond the
reasonabée controd of the management, and
It cioas ok el Bragging results, 1 haes
genarated rbust profitabiity with a GP%

of 25.83%.

Wiith the oplics of the siuation and the
ralivgr [gss cartain eerain of businass,
the Company delvered 12416 tractors
i Tha yaar 2014, companed with 14,071
soid In the year 2013, a contraction of
11.8%. DasEha O rieinun aackng, with

ol management. the

o 4 ol Tha Iy
eamed & pre-1ax profit of A=, 2.25 billon,
companad with RS, 2.02 bllion earmed in
2013, an increase of 11%. The mpact

of lough microeconamic emiranmeant,
has pummesd the Lsusl eamings of the
Company because of reducad saks -
which & ke a crisis to be encured.

But beyond this year's balance shest which
iz nal as sterling as the Compary is used
Lo reporting and the finandal resuls ane
not as eye-popping as they should be,
AGTLS govemance, visionary Board,
internal controls, dynamic workfiorce and
Its corporate viskon have kept things happy
o other fronts, AGTLS cash hoand s Rs.
5.8 billion, In cash, cash equivalents, and
Irnvestmants.

And the Company's bullet proot Flva

(=1
164,34 O

taims of mar

a valua of Ain

turdamental strenglh of the

Lhvireg upp bo s reputation of always doing

3
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AGTL

wiall for the shareholders, the Company
had paid a cash dividend of 200% in
kovemiper 2014, The Board of Directors is
oy plaasid Lo announce @ Turthes Cash
dividand of 300%. The total dividend for the
tinancial year 2014 wal thus be S00% that
I% @ payeut of Bs. 1.4 billon, Diddends thus
fedl our real stony.

DEPRESSED COMMODITY PRICES
STRAPPED LOW INCOME FARMER
Fammers ars making
DANTING Crops: Emrsm-ersnwahsimmay
mmmmm Farrnars ana Torosd
fo sal thair produce at low prices in the
absence of a policy to support them.
Fanmars compiain, and righthy, thal e
prices al which they ane forced to sell

their commoditias don't even cover the
Inpt costs, Around S6% of h tarmens

In tha counbry own less tham 25 acres

o lard and ﬂnn‘:ﬂ pfnl:rdLh:aE tradalbie

BI.-H'H‘-S'

Prices ofiered by the government do not
avan coser the inflation. Whaat prices
ware fiuad by the goverremant in 2012
and e current prices offared will Decome

cperational in May 2015, when official

procurament will start.

The cane economy is also trapped in low
price cyche, Most small and medium sized
farrmers ane being forced 1o sall their crops
at throwaway prices because they cannat
kesy I Crops in B Nedd un- haryeasted,

Fall in rice rates
causes rift

among
stakeholders

By B Ratoe

Sugar Mil owners had ganged up together
ko shut down thelr milis wilh no crushing,
rasiulling in protests by the growars -
ultimatety the Issue going to the Supreme
Ciourt of Pakistan where the case of Tikdng

|Farmers’ body urges govt to buy rice at
lsuppmrt price to rescue growers

32
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price has Deen highlighted as “explofiatie,
unreasonabla and sconomically uniable
and unsustanable lopeided regulation of the
SUGHF Sclor,

Famers have been profesting in differsnt
parts of the country and even Mreatenad
1o basiege mills. Thera, It seems, is no
ratiorale on how the prices are Tved by the
governrment. Thig igsiee neads to be satlied
2 1he benalit of the growers,

Caught between faling Income and
rising costs of inputs because of axation
and tha muscia of the vested interest,
agriculture econamy can tel heavily on

CJ dissociates himself from
SUZAr cane price case

Fakislan's overall econormy in the years
ahaad, tabkzing faling pricas

Wahile the farmers aeady have thelr backs
anched jow because of withdrawal of
subsidies and heavy taxation, they are

also agitating against the government's
dactalon o alow duty free import of 137
Iherns of dgricullurl products Ihnough th
Wagha border from Indla, which gives an
agricultural subsidy of over Rs, 100 bilomn
to it agricullural produce. The Pakéstani
farmer is thus unabés fo compste with the
glut created by Indlan produce crossing the
bordar al kower prices,

The governrmient reseds 10 take o holistc
approach and decide whathar 1o use the
crop dynamics as a revenue-genarating

source o eam a palry 14 billion as
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General Sakes Tax o weigh in the socisl
Impact of food security for the nalion, and
employment of labour. Maost countries
Subsicies e sector whise Pakistan laxes 1L
Instead of {axing the inputs, the govermment
ought to tax the product.

SKEWED AGRICULTURAL CREDIT
Wiith the Zaral Taragiati Bank - ZTBL -

In the red. owing A=, 83.2 bilion 1o the
Siale Bank of Paklstan, thane |5 & nesd for
cormective steps to dsbursse agriculbural
credit with prudence. The State Bank of
Fakistan has sat o fangel of disbursing
Rz, 500 bilion agrcuttural crecl? during
this fiscal year. While the share of bank's
crochl 1o pgriculiurs 15 just aboul 5.7% of
fha fatal advances, its outraach i limibed
o only around 2.15 millon bofrowens as
against the 8.3 miElion farm households in
the country. The financial institulkons cater
1o oniy 30% of the national agriculiural
Ipan requirement, The oiher 70% comeas
from wery expicitative sources carmying
compound interest rates with demands 1o
kisep the crop as colataral,

Baesides, agriculiural credit disbursement

| Pakistan faced with food insecurity threats

i rathver unenenn, 115 Tfed i oo of
tarm “production” with ittie lending for
“denvvedopment” - that 18 lcans for punchase
of traciors, and Tarm equipment, Such
Inaning batwaan the fiscal year 2011 to
2014 was a meager Az. 10.7 bilion that is
3.33% af e todal agriculiural loans, This
Iy lending for development impedes {arm
mechanization - enoe reduced per-acre
yiakds of crops,
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MEED FOR MECHANISATION

There ts a need to cevelop a nallona
S 0 e moectanizalion (o
hedp in sustaining tamm output growth
and profitabiity to the fammer. Even the
Anmid Economic Surwey pubished by

Ethar gasarnmen has scant informration on
mechanization, Whike subsidzed fractor

schemes of the recent years have indead
adoed rachons 1o Ing lds, The ana
culthvated by farmer owned tractors =
£iill le=s than 10% of the tolal £.6 milion

witlh exloriionists. Tha
recently launched Sindh Tractor

WS Oy S0l O scam which ought 1o b
probed, where the tax payer's money pad
a5 subsidy ended up In shady comdors.
Thiz doas fot hdp the bonalida Bme in
whosa name the schemes are launchead,

Maost small farmers still aultivale ther
land with traditional cxen-driven ploughs.
Without caveloping a comprehensive
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wil-ntegrated poicy, tarm mechanzation
wil confinue to ba neglected with low per
acre yislds, pre and post-hanvest loeses,
obe, Most ecally producod fam machinas
maruiaciured by street vendors are poor in
quality, with a short e and uneconomical.

temes, the Companty's salsa ¢

There Is a nead to gear up agrcultural
mechanization drve, the share of
devslopment ioans for tractors and
agricultural implements nesds to be
Increased, texation policies on legitimate
mmmnyuwwwnmmm
reviewad, and lheme is a nead to gva
recognition to progressive farmers.

THE FLOODS

In the last fve monsoon seasons,
Fakisian has seen five foods

with the Super Noods of 2010, Evry

year since 2010 has brought a massie
fiood devastating thowusanda of acres of
productive lands, habital and nrastruciung,
With flioods concentrating their fury in
Southern Punjab whers the AGLT plant

s lpcated and which ang primae araas of

sahes Tor the -::Drnpal'r,- mmnpal'ry has
continued to suffer losses of production and
sales.

Though fiood kosses since 1847 have been
estimated at over $44 billon, these losses
oo not seam to register on the political
Richter scale. Whie the country s walsr-
starved. the govemments & not willng
to come up Wah a well-calibrated strategy
to minmize sconomic losses and to sst
the pace and direclion for consaning

and stofng this surplus ow of waler. As
much as 40 million acm foot of waler fiows

Into the sea every yaar and while passing
Eheough destroys: standing crops, villages
and infrasiruciure, This |5 an egregious
waste of avalabke waler which could be
harnessed 1o wse,

There |5 also a need o locus on post-fliood
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tarmn credit for those fanmers whose crops
as well as veslock wene washed away. In
the year 2010, the State Bank of Pakistan
e Equncihid o subsicizedd ralinandcing
scheme for revival of agricultural actities in
ficod aflected areas. Farmer today is paying
15-16% infenes] &6 bank mark-up - this
neads to ba redressed and the schema
renfvied 1o rehabiifate the Tanmens.

WATER COMNSERVATION

Pakisian is one of the most water stressed
countries in the world, not far from being
classified a5 “water scance” with ess Ihan
1000 cudic maters par person par year,

Says & report of the Asian Dewelopment
Ok, The raport says that water
dernand excesds supply, which had causad
mazdmum withdrawsl from reservoirs. The

repart says that PaKIStan's slormge capacity
I Bmiftod b 30 chys supphy, well Esow
fhe recommendad 1,000 days for countrias
with & smiar cimate.

Tha farmers are using 5 MAF undarground
wiater every year and the watber level is
decreasing to 8 record low. Wigh little being
dhond 1o construct Dig resersoirs and disms
and 1o embark on waler consenancy, the
sluation is rather grim.
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Fioct and waler ang interdinked. Despito
being caled an agrarian country, cur food
sacUty has Deen detenorating since 2003;
in 23014 Pakidstan stood at T7th posiion
among 107 nations (72 percentile) on Food
Security Indee. According to the Word
Bank's Poverty Head Count Analysis 2014,

Country rapidly moving
towards water crisis

the situadion 15 evien mone precanous, I
puts the country’s population living balow
the powerty Bne at 60.18%, of which 21.4%
fall under the category of “exdreme povesty
with comes of less than §1.25 a day™.

Tha Warld Bari Bad gonerously provided
financial support In the year 20012-2011

to e govermment for water consanvation
projects including RS, 14 billion for HEIS, on
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wihich thene 15 8 subsidy

Committed as we are to sustainable
agriculture and &5 pan of comporata social
responsiity, the Company responded by
entering into collaboration agreements with
Int&'ﬂﬂtml cormpanins to lemch Sman

QOVETIANCE PIOCESses e vRAl In
enhancing corporate accountability, We are
thus committed fo enswing high standards
of corporate govemance 10 presense and
maintain shamsholder value, Promoting high
standards of corporate governance, the
n::anp.ww'frm 0 ol of thie Codis of

I-ERSSI'IGI.II.DIFEIIH

Irrigation Solutions and 1o put its footprnts
in HEES market. Our High Efficiency
Imgation Syaterns ane in the evangelzing

stagas of showing fanmmens the benefits
of wsing this technology. Model farms are

be=ing set up for demonstration purposss n
WIrOUS regions

The Company i steadily and prudently
expanding fs reach and has secured orders
ko instading the projects on around 1000
aches, We have sel the tabks for expanding
the businass with a projection o set up the
systems on 2,000 aces in 2015,

Tl 15 0 b Troem (R Qoserniment To
Iaad in the pursult of accomplishing this
much needed technical acumen by putting
the project on fast track by elminating

the long processes and proceduras of
appeovals,

Todate the progress I rather slow and very

It P T Ecresiannad fromm e Linding
provided by the Word Bank,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Tha Boaed and managament of Al-Gharzi
recognize that wel defired comporate

E DAY OF FAHIHHS UPRISING

Comporale Governancs promiigated by the
SEGR

To ensure compllance, an Indepandent
Direcior = Mr. Mohammiad Al Qahwm = hag
baen inducted 1o the Board. A Charfaned
Accountant from England and YWales,

and with vast expenance in hig fisids with
specific focus on the auto sector, Mr,
Mahammiad Al Qabum, &5 indepsendant
Cérecior, wil also chalr the Audit Committes
o the Board. The Board akso endeavours
to bemchmark (te performancs with Bast
Practices inciuding the Board evalugtion of
its crwn parformance by the Dineclors of tha
Board.

The COMpany's CoMmorale goveRnance
continues 1o get recognition. The Gompany
recefved the ulimate accolads in Corporata
parfornancd - he Comporabe Exceloncs
Award of the Managemen! Association

ol Pakisian, The criberia kor the award
inchuded inancial Essessment; oororala
governance; stratege planning,; leadership,
CUSENMEr BN market Tocus, NUman
resource focus: operations management;
information management and social
responstbility. The eward was confemed

a7
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bry the President of Pakistan, Compary's
Annual Report fior the year 2013 also
received the ICAP / ICMAP award of the
Bosl Progented Accounts,

FUTURE OUTLOOK

While the Company continues to struggie
harbaning hopes thal the exlernal obstaci
decelaraling the business will end, the
Comgany 12 Tuslad by e confidence hat
with its fundamenial sirengths, the quality of
Its devaled worklonce, e supply systems,
and with Its ratiomsice distribution network
and customer cange centnes, the Comgany
wil see a revving up of tractor sales to keep
the production ne running at ful 1.

-'--.- L is @ memusactun nat has

Irial bl AGTL'MII
Hmpasbeaﬂynammimmmrandbaha
the Company ahead.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Cansequent Upon compleding the thee year
ftemm, M Stefanc Pampalone and Mr. Nasir
Mahmaood retired from the Board. Board

acknowledges with thanks thelr invaiuable

contribution to oversesing the business of
the Company. We wash them wall in their
future endeavours.

Whila Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt, Mr. Parvaz
All, b Kashif Lawsl, Mr. Majd-ul-Ahsan
Syad, Ms. Glovinna Barbierd, Mr, Damiano
Cratarola wen na-alecied direclors for a
fresh thres year term, Mr Mohammad Al
Cadumn and M, Michele Lombardl weng
also elected as raw Direclors on the Board.
AGTL welcomes Mr. Mohammad Al
Crayum and My, Michele Lombardi to

the Board and looks forwarnd (o thelr

prodessional expartiss in guidng the Board.

Board elected Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt as
Itz Chairmarn.

For and on behall of tha Board

L o
Charles Leonard Huni
Chairman

Karachl - February 12, 2015

Ei]¢’s been proven that of all the
interventions to reduce poverty,

producivity

improving agricultural
i.nh: best. All the other different
But in lﬁdﬂ
inlpiénlt:u.!l e

yes it trickles

B2 Ganea
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#3230 DEMERE L L

FOOD DEMAND
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Barlding and retaining the trust of the Company’s intemal and external stakeholders

I= eszential 1o Al-Ghazi's continued business succees. Engagement and dialogue are
consequantly an imporant companent 10 understand their expectations, nesds and
COMNCEMS.
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STRENGTHS

Tha Compary has eatabdshed Resl A
one of the laading fracior manufackuners in
tha courtny, Our most enduring compet e
e i the qualty of our Traciors. AGTL has
o (e years suppled 200000+ macior.
Alrost &l are farrn worihy and kegl mobie
Through AGTL S chamkar nEtwork providing
ahor sale suppon. We ane e lowesl cosl
pisducer Of & cualty product.

Tha Comparry has a s¥eng fnancal base
'with red debis and no: bank: borowings.
Tha Compary has & skong dealur natwark
in evany nook and cranny of the courdry.

Thas Compearty now Nas deansifed ks
Dusneas im0 High EMceancy inigation
Symaim. Gersraions and manufaciuring
ol agricufiural machines wiin potontial to
L

OPPORTUNITIES

44

Pakistan necds around one milion faciors
mone if the rabo of one tmctor-to-#ty aces
s 1o be attaned - the intemational stancdord
5 one tmctor-io-fiventy fve aoes and
even lesser in the frst word countries. The
oppomumines thension orn gakonn, 1 i tha
RMETIEAT that nasds 10 6 in s pursalt
ol priceitizing Pakisian's agroran aconomy.

Linmnch of ey Po0ucts B foue vehiel
it TBCHor and gereealon,

Iratalialion of srmart inigation sohticni
through Dirig krigadion sysisma has
acosarsted during the year and is sxpectsd
10 increase in (he years o come,

WEAKNESSES

& BEadoced naning om tha Danks and
Inconsistent polcies.
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Tha Boards of Direclons ane responsiole
for oversaeing the Implamentation of, and
enguring thens ano adequabe polices and
procedures in miation to the Company's
risk management and Intermal compliance
and conirol sysiem. Thesa systems
requine management to ba nesponsibls for
idientifying and managing =k on day to
day basis. The risks faced by 1ha Compary
inchuds strafegic, Snancial and ron-
tnancial cperational isks impacting areas
a5 supgly chan, production, raputation,

erminonment, safety, business condinuity and
hurman resounce. The Alsk Maragemsant
Committes looks Into and aodresses thase
risks. This Committes reports to the CED
and Ia responsible for implementing the risk
managament polcy. Be deiberations ane
placed before the Board for perusal.

Th Talioing Section revinws som of the
key risks identified and the cormesponding

mitigating strategies that are in place.

Iy b0 S0UNCE MoV matennl
and iIncresso in prices may afecy
1he profit Farging.

VWioakneses N 1hae internal
CONIFD] Bk Coud lead to
s of Snancial meduiariies and
unithical work procticss

Mitigating Actions

Agrculturs s sad o be the backbone of Pakestan's economy.

inthe couniry, The Company has 81 daalers acress the couniry,
The Company sasis i inorease it oustome s base and has:
recermly dversified in the manuinchure and sale of implements,
generniors and instalation of smart imgation sysiems. Momover,
Company’s procicts am exponod 1o Alghanistan o reduce
EEpAnCency N B Snge markel.

Ravw rmaienial sourcing and pricing ore managed by congtorely
Incraasing The SURDH Dase 50 SnGune UNIMBMUNond proCLIBETEnT,
Frices are pppnoed Dy 10e DrceE nenisioen Comimithee i0 comml
BCNEraS [ics Mmovemans,

Tha Company has put in place maruals, delegabon of authoefy
B reguiar mprting framaawr 10 dentify pnd monitor oneas of
porianiol expomrs. Irdapercen| chacks on ineenal controle and
TEgs; MANAQINTHINT prOcEss G undortoken by fhe intemal Avdit
cepartment 10 erauns Their efectivensss and BOMJUACY,
Severnl polcies: such &s whisiie biowing peotection policy and
financinl muthorsy limits are in place 1o miigate the sk of froud.
Druring The yoor under neview, thom weng no reponied cases of
fraud or comuption,

The Gompary's product has around 82°% local components. s
redicing the dependency on imporied maternial
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AGETL was the founding member of the UN “Giobal
Compact” nitiatiee when it was launched in Decemiber
2005,

Trez Company adheres to all the principles of the Global
Caompact wilth referance to Hurnan Rights, Labour,
Ernaronment and Ethical practces.
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Management Objectives and Strategles

Despite & chalienging emdronment during 2014, the Company menaged to generate
prodis to the tune of bilons of nupees with record high GP% and MNP%.

With strong presence in the nural areas, ASTL is a house hold name in the farming
community, The Company has now Togused on diversiication with the mroduction of fem

machines and equipmant, High Efficiancy Erigation Systems and quality generators,

Tholr Cormpinny's primary objeciien i 10 enhance SHamhob3ers visue, Wi Sirivo 1o achiows
our objective with excallence in corporate governance and human resource practices.
LUtmiost prioAty ks ghven to the quality of our prockcts. Robust and sturdy, the Company's
prociects of 55, B5, 75 and 85 hp, corry a local conlent of arcund D2%. With effecihve cosl
conbrols and efficlent enargy managemaent, the Company has reduced varibk cosls -
adding to the overall proditabiity.

The Company's finandial and non-financial perdormance is a reflection of achieverment of
management’s ohjectives. There |2 no material change In the management strategies and
oclpectives from the previous year,

Liquidity and Capital Structure

Thea Cormgpany has a solid financial basa with no debl, no bank bomowing and adequata
liquid Imvestmenis. The capital sinecture consists of ordinany shares of Rs 5 face value.
Thx Compiany belleves Ehat them 15 no indecpacy’ in copitad atruciune,

Significant Changes in Financial Position
Thare wera no significant changss in the fimandial position of the Company,

Hon-Financlal Periormands

T quality of frectors, cuslomer satisfaction, empioyes retention and development and
ethical business conduct are the Cormpany's key non-inandial perfonmance ind calors,
Tha Managoment kieps a close viglh on all haso ansas and sirves 1o conbinualy Improw
HZSPE*:H'I'I\E.I'H:E inclkcators.

Sepmental Review of Business Pearformanca

The financial statements of the Comgany have bean prepaned on the basis of a singlk
raportaiie segmant. My businass initiatives and trading goods represent 1,2% of tha
fotal revenue, The Company has dealerships in two countrias; Pakistan and Afghanistan.
All asseds of the Cormpany ane located in Pakistan.
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Critical Performance Indicators
Following ang some of the critical perormance indicators against stated objctives of the
Company;

Cranlity product at the kowes! price;

Efficiency and eflectivensess of each producton process;
Creating walue for the shareholders;

Ernpsonoe retention and satisfaction;

Compliance with laws and reguiatons;

Conssstent corporate achievements and excalience;
Dnviiopmanl of kacal Community.

T Cormpany befleves that these indcators will continwe to be redevant In the future as
el

Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Plan

The Company places paramount importance on business continuty £ disasler necovarny.

A Fusk Management policy has been spproved by the Board and a Risk Management

Commiles has Deon forrmsd wiich fiviows and rpors Mo vakows anas of sk and

bussiness continuity 1o the Board. Moreover, the following measures are in place 1o ensune

smooth restoration of key operations:

* Application and daty back-ups are maintened of diferent Sies o ensune madimum
security. In case of falure of primary sarver, the back-up sanvar with the samsa
configuration 13 aleo evedabile.

+  Comprehensive fire prevention system has been put in place through mechanical
inslaliations as wel a5 frequent fire drils,

*  Agdequate insurance arrangements have been made to mitdgate businass raks.

*  Prvantive maintenance programime coupiad with Trening is carmied ol intermiltenthy
to minimize business disruptions.

* 24 howrs secunty &t the plant and staff town has been provided,

Safely of Records

T Company piaces emphasis on safely and storge of s fnancial and olher reconds,
AGTL was the first automobds company in Pakisian bo introduce a high profile EFRP
solution, Baal, to put the IT process in full circle. Commissionad in Januany 2002, this
complele ERP thius inter-links all processes and suppons Company's wider siralegic
obpaclives, Acoess 1o skcironic data is ensuned through he use of login and passwonds,
The Company ensures that & data ks retained for &t least six years to mest legal and
operational requinements, Mo logs o breach of conficential data was reporied during
2014,
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis
Following ang the iactors which mighl afiect the shara price of e Compary:

Government declslons

Government decisions on crop prices, laxes, subsidized tracior schemes elc, ae
Imiportant drivers of the Company's share prices. Decisions favourable to the Company
have led to increase In share price, whilst decisions o the contrary have negatively
impacied shm prica,

Weather patterns
Faging foods and inadequate ramidl afects the fisancial pefomancs of ' ractor
Indusiry, thus atfecting the share price.

Plant eperalions

Stabiity of planl eperations ks of paramount importance, Stable plant operations alow for
nighes production Bnd add to the profitaidity of the Comparny which can posiively alfect
the share peice,

Variation In material cosls

Eeing a manulaciuring concem, material cost comprises of a signilcant portion of varable
cost Any ncrease in matesial costs impacts the gross profit and results in reduced profits.
This may adversaly atect the share price.

Interest rates

The Company holds a significant amount of investments in mutual funds and bank
chapasils, A Gocronst in nteres! flo GoCrases th iImesiment incoma and decrmasas
profilabiity. Comersely, an incraase in interest rate increases proftablity and may resull in
highes share price.

Law and ordar

Polifical uncertainty makes business skiftish and jsopardizes economic and business
aclivity. Produclion Sullers because of supply chain iS5ues anising oul of law and orger
probisms.

Infarmation Technology Governance

Infcrmation Management and Infcemation Technology s bt into AGTLS strategy. IT
SySiom pliys an mporant ok in supporting AGTLS cument opdralions and 85 new
Infliathvas. Our ERP system continues te infagrate all funclion across the Company,
taciiteting qreater efficiency and effectivenass of all processas and contros,



ERPsotution-BaalN

The Company had commissioned BaaN, a global provider of enterprise
business solutions to over 15,000 customer sites worldwide to
implement ERP at AGTL.

The project went live

on January 1, 2002,

with the entire business
eyele viz Sales and
Marketing, Planning and
Purchase, Stores and
Inventory, Manufacturing,
Guality, Maintenance,
and Finance, executed
as enterprise-wide
integrated business
system.

Baan and Microsoft
have made
substantive
progress.. Working
together to make
our product wery
viary complimentary
and creating what
I guess is the best
example of what
wiz call DIGITAL
MERVOUS
SYSTEM.

- BILL GATES




Quality

Assurance

‘With discipined focus on al quaity
management systems, AGTL s committed
1o rerniain a1 par with best internalional
practicss, quallty standards, parfoemance ® Funning test on FOI,
requirements, and product specifications of

GNH, Quality 15 monitonad ot anry kvl of

production.

Testing at roller test nigs;
Burnp lesting; ard

Sorme of this modeen GuaBty control
mathods adopbed by the Company am as
Toliows;

= LUtimate Tensile Strength Test on UTS
testing maching,

»  hateral Hardness test on Hamdress
testing maching;

L] Destnicivi test of varous componants
o confirm maborial:

+  Engine testing on alectomic teat rigs:
Fumction test on test Denches:



Fast Track to ISO

ETTFICATE € HEGISTRATION

Mulllr.l'.llv'..' Sl | BTN
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With quality being the Company's Thizs major advancemeant to tuning

most enduring competitive edge. up the production activities through

AGTL was the first automaobile 150-2000 has put in place a systam
company in the country to eamn the of sound quality activities and

1S0-8002 certification in 1898. cross functional integrated process

through out the Company.

Every year the Company is audited for upkeep of its activities.
Decumentation is a pre-requisite for this certification. IS0
certification is now valid up to 2016.



Human Resource
Management (HRM)

AGTL recognizes that motivated and
professional employess are an essential
Tachor Tor malnlaining compatfhveness
and for creation of shamsholder value and
oustomer satistaction.

The Company is commitled to

providing equal opporunities to el

its employees, Dath on (he job & in

treir camar advancemanl. All aspect of
employment, such &3 recnaitment, training,
Sompensation, promotion and transfer ane
free from amy form of discrmination,

Performances appraisal is one of the
mportant comporents of HAM, The
performance Menagement sysiem at
AGTL confinues 1o ba an assential tood to
provide regular feedback o align esmployes
performance with business strategy.

{  AGTL has a harassment policy In
place and Is in compliance with the
Protection Against Harassment of
Women at Workplace, Act 2010,
HNo Instances of harassmenl Wisha
reported during the year 2014,

Succession Planning

Succession Planning is a proaciive
approach o managing talent &s it involves
ientification of bigh potential employess
for anticipated future neads and the
takorad development of these peopls so
1hat thers is a tabant pood of leadsership
pipeline avalable to mest AGTL's demands
as they anse. AGTL has fomiulated a
compradnsing Suctssion plan o all kiy
posttions. Swcoession Planning is formaly
addressed by the Boand of Direclors,
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Performance Analysis

Six Years analysis of
Profit and Loss

Sales Revenue and Gross Profit

Tha tractor industry has bean showing
negative year on year revenue rend due fo
underperioming economy and curlailment
of credit for tractors by banking sector.

The revenus during the year 2014 was
mainly affected due to Nncraasse in sales tax
rata curing first half of the year. The federal
Mgmmmmmmmuﬂmamn
finafy reduced the sales tax from 16%

to 10%, though the farmers” community
wanted it brought back to zen.

Far AGTL, doing a bigger damage were

the devastaling foods surging and raging
In Seuthern Punjab whene the AGTL plant
I5 located. Further, the sudden withdrawal

of subsidies on the crop —wheal, paddy,
cotton, and sugar cane in the month of
Decamibear akso joited the momentum of
cales.

Daspite reducad revanue, the Comparny
managed to increase its GP%. This
positive performance is atinbutable to l=an
managemeant, operational efficiencies,
better sales mix and controls on input cost,
The GP% improved from 16.78% in 2009
1o 25.83% In 2014.

Distribution and Administrative
Expenses

The Company keeps a tight control on

fis owverheads. The distribution cost has
increased by 3% Cumuiative Annual
Growth Rate [CAGR) since 2009 whereas
adminisiralive expensss have incraased by
13% CAGR, In lina with inflationary trend.
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AGTL

Performance Analysis
Other Income

Ofner income mainly represents income
from investrnants in mutual Tunds and bank
daposits. It stands at 5.2% of revanus in
2014 as comparad to 2.6% In 2000,

Profitability

Tha Company'’s profilabily vanies in lina
with the sakes revenue and gross profit.
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The profit after lax stood at Rs. 1.6 bilion
in 2014 increase af 15% compared to tha
previous year. The NP% has increased from
11.068% in 2009 10 17.893% in 2014,

Six Years analysis of
Financial Position

Equity and Reserves

Despite extra ordinany dividend payouts,
equity and reserves have increased from
As 5.4 billion in 2008 to a record high of Rs
8.5 billon. The Increase is atiribulable o
consistent performance of the Company.
Moreoyer, share capital Increased by 35%
In the year 2014 due to Izsus of Bonus
shares.

Shareainler’s soily (Fe. WBos| | Beaslp vlos per e Fa)
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Proparty, plant and equipment witnessed
incraass over tha yaars due 1o expansion
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Performance Analysis

and replacement of manufacturing faciiiies, significant increase is despite the dividend
construction of Genarator Assembie Line in - payout of Rs 5 bikon since 2009.

DGK and the ongalng construction of Head

Oftice bullding In Karachi_ s e e

Stock in trade

pjras 1783
1373
The Company makes all efforts 1o maintain pitki
raw material and components Inventory at - AR
safely stock levels to minimize production AL
disruptions due to supply chaln lssues vl i
of auto sector. Higher inventory as at
December 2014 includes a substantial ;
portion of firished goods which was mainly
P =y

due to reduced sales during the month of i i s
December as explained above, e

ama

Refunds due from the Government

This represents sales tax refunds arising
due to difference in the rate of input tax

of 17% and the cutput tax of 10%. Tha
Comparny rgorously folowed FER for
refsase of pending redund cialms which
resvilted in notabba dacine in the balance at
the year end.

Investments, cash and bank balances

Imvastrments, cash and bank balances arn a
witness to the consistent profitabilty of the
Company, The Comipany maintains funds

in term deposit receipts with Banks and
invests in open endad mutual funds. Cash
and investment reserves as at 2074 was
Rs. 5.9 billion as compared to As. 3.7 bifon
in 2009, transiating Inlo CAGR of 10%. This

&1
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Analysis Of Financial Ratios
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Six Years Analysis of Cash flow

Tha Cormpany monttors its cash inflows
and cutfliows on a daily basis. Cash
management ard investment sirategles

are then planned to maxdimize retums, The
Company has generated Rs. 5.3 billion from
operations since December 2009,

Cash L2ed in irvesting activities reprasent
cash usaga on account of fieed capetal
axpanditure and Investrents,

Cash outfiow from financing actvities has
increased over the years due o increase in
dividend payments. Rs. 1.2 bilion was paid
as dividend in the year 2014 as compared
to Rs 0.7 bilion in 2009, AGTL is a debt

frea Comparny,

Six Years Analysis of Ratios

Profitabllity Ratlos

Tre Company’s sound business
performance ks depicted through favorable
profitabiity ratios over the years. The
decreasa in return on equity since 2009

is mainly due to increase in reserves as a
result of prafit accumation.

Liquidity and Turnover Ratios
The Company being cash rich. has reporied
Tavourable quidity raties.

Increasa in operating cycle is manly due to
highar imantory balance at the year and as
axplaned above.

Market Ratlos

Due to decrease in net profit and increase in
share capital, EPS has reduced since 2009,
However, backed on its financial sirength,
business indicators and rich dividand
payouts, the five rupee share of the
Compary hit an al-me high of RS 48424
in Novemnber 20714, Marke! capltalization
doubled from Rs 10 billkon in 2000 to Rs
26 bilkon In 2014, AGTL has continuousty
maintained a dividend yield beyond the
market nomms in order 1o compensate its
shareholders handsomehy.
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Six Years Horizontal Analysis
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Six Years Horizontal Analysis
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Six Years Vertical Analysis
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BRLANCE SHEET
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DRI ETR Fat ] LR113 LR 1R R LLEEL
01,753 B9 w1341 [T P50 T
'IM 15.44% 1& 11 78% 1 535 11.06%
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Sales during tha first and second quarer
were affected due to the tumuit caused

by the issue of sales tax on traciors. The
ding-dong state was finally settied when the
government announced the scaling down
of GST from 16% 1o 10% for the fiscal year
2014-2015.

Despite poitical disturbance and the Hoods

in the country, the Company managed o
increase iis evenue In the third quarter.

HETL
Quarterly Analysis
Company's quartarly ol az o3 o4 Total
pERormancea
Rs'000

Sales 1,251,187 206835256 2,271,313 3184660 8,780,685
Gross profit 313,235  b635F0 589,601 796,737 2268143
Oiher Incorma 103,438 101,103 112,665 140,088 457,194
Profit batore tax 317 367 536,638 GO0.874  BO5028 22518937
Profit atter tax 234,824 381,126 2 395808 6562986 1,574,744
Gmas Profit % 25.04 ar.or 2640 24.04 2583
Mt Profit % 18.77 18.47 17.43 17.682 17.83
Salas Thie last quarter witnessed an upturn in

sales as per the seasonal frend coninibuting
36% of the tolal revenue.

Gross Profit and Net Profit

Thi Company's profitablilty. gross and nat,
showed a notable growth during the last
quarter e, 36% of total profit. In addition
to cost confrolling measures, appreciation
in Pak Rupee against US Dolar also
canfributed for the same,

Sali Revenass (A8, Mllon) [/ Grois Profit (%] [ set Profi (%)
S G 26.40% 20505
R —
a— — L
e
- i 17.47% 1162
3,155
m an
LM
o LFF3 03 04
| Salkes  ~—Gioas PIOGLN. = et Profia %
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Dupont Analysis

Year

204
2013
2012
2011
2010
2003

As llustrated above, operational efficiency
of tha company as maasured in terms of
profit marging have increased since 2009
backed on laan manadgameant and effective

Cosl controls.

The asset use efiiclency measured in terms

Raturn on
Equity (ROE)

A'B'C

18.41%
16.69%
24.17%
20.08%
30.00%
32.17%

Financial Leverage Asset Turmnaver

(Total Assets / [Sakes / Total
Cwners' Equity) Assets)

L%
1.168
1196
1.185
1.264
1.206
1.362

of assat tumover has decreased since

2012 due to reduction in sales revenue on
account of market uncertainty and Increase

in the rate of sales tax on tractors.

B
0.678
0.843
1.661
1.182
1.848
2136

Profit Margin
(Proft after tax /
Sales)

A
17.93%
14,81%
12.96%
13.44%
12.78%
11.08%

AGTL is a debt free Company. Change
in financial leverage is due 1o incraase in
equity on account of profils retained In the

business.
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AGETL
Direct Cash Flow Statement
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2074 013
Rupees ‘000

Caah receipts from customers B4 LR

Cod paid 10 supplien / senion providens and empicyees (T A3BGES] (7480,121]

Worken Funds 4130585 T4

ot opsraling Icams - .

Irscomae taw pasd {674,854) (13150

Sl lad rifhanndl F | payrinith dIE 342 1.547)

Fatrement benefits 29,202 3524

Loani, depeiity and othes aperating ncome - net (18,183 21,454
1078632 1175686

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Flued capital expenditure FILET R #1518}
Procadds reen dapsotal of fued aisets 4038 5045
Furchase of mresiments 28,000 (2Anaazr
ﬁ-wdﬂ:mdﬁp&dal‘ﬂmlm. 1,900,158 75,425
iPlacement in |/ encashment of term deposits - net (2,100,000 2,100,000
Returm o bank deposits 198,800 £14,717
Drecreaie i bong-tenm fioans 7202 11.895

{54658 53052

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

D paid {1.219,754) ¢ 1,071,853]
Met {decrease] / increase in cash and cash equivalents |4E3 TRE &35 BES
Can anf cash sgubalients at Baginning of (he year 1,003.497 LETTA3R

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1419309 1.20x497
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Statement of Value Addition

2014 013
Rs"o00 L] Rz ‘003 G
‘Wealth Gererated
Lales B, 780085 G5 SIE2620 4
Other Income 457,194 5% ang, ;a3 %
0337679 100 D56, 100%
Disaribartion of Waahth
Cot of sabes & overheads (exchuding
rernungeation] 6373878 G5% TO5L34 5%
Ta eenployeos a5 remuneration 403,008 4% A0 309 A%
T govemiment a5 ta 677,193 T 651,504 ]
WFFF and WWF TEE DY I 14950 Pl
Ta sharehobdors as dividend T A4D105 16% 1073410 1%
Rartained withie the business 167,840 P 337,081 EL]
9237879 10 SLEEA. 000 100
' Cosi o what and
Bt
» To gownenamart
WEPE and WWF
» Mangows ot
= Dividane!
Retmred in busnesi

|
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AGTL

I ceterminng the camposlon of e Board,
consideration i given o e ontmal mix of Beckground,
miin s expenencs Tt will position the Boad (o guele
the Cormpery. The curenl boerd memibers comprs= of
bLmnes innders, professonats wih Sranciel auds,

p’dmcrﬁw;utmmaiwmm;m 21 w4
of iz fnrusl Rapor

Board Effectivenass

T Bl hts AGCE=ES 50 COMpkE. AdaTuR ond
tirraaky InboerTation and recounced. & lonmal Agenda B
prepesad by o Bosrd maestings by e Compary
Secratany i corsadiation Wil P CEO S Crasirien. Tre
eperda and supporing docurens we drousted (o sl
direiors o ket seen deys hefore the mesting

Thit Boam Mocss G n quaneiy DRSS 0 oy and
Bporove tha msoass o Quanony FEsURE. Ad-hoc

D IR = R

Bods bR o= A GRS inRA

e A -

* D rocef e ol b,
Al Board mectngs wees okl n Paosian

Board Training

A part of e Compsny's COnanung eaucason o ol
dracion, Ta Comgssny Sooneany Circuisies o he
Bosrl, aricies, A0S &g [ess [Sieanss teaan

I thet Compiry's busnees 10 eeg &l drecton
tupriatat on indslny s and St Changes

1 regulafions am s riommed (o fe Boeedl. The
exierme auckiors routrely updste e Audt Commites

T4

Ssrgs: My D8 COMEnsd B8 NECESEERy 10 Consides
oittes spescilic matens. i addition 1o having mastng,
dermscres of (het Biowed andd s Cormmitass oy sl b
obimred vin crouer reschdion. Sohack e of sl Board
mesings and Al Genemd Memtng (0O for the
net coenclar year 5 plhnned n acharce

The Board nas ACCe6S 50 the CED, mambens of Te
AN and il Doemparsy Secrny of o Thes
Thin Company SeCTtarny DRIWISoS BLDDOr 10 the
Boad and ensres ot Boam proceces and
ApRAcAbic ndes and repinons ae teioyad The
Company Gooetony alo gessts T Chanman in
ERRSTG proper infomnaion Aow wehin tha Boaet ard
i Commitiss rswel g advisng e Boeed on o
povermarce: matiers. The Sompany Soomrdany attonds
al reetnges and s ses thed min e ae coulsted
Wi Hhe simusten e

Tha aencares of (poioes B BS iiows

O My Bl rendsedd Bnancil reponing Slardas
TekEvar 15 e Company:

A g by e Seo s o Factenge
Crrtaression of Pasiztan [SECP, which manckes Bosd
merniters bo reguned cerification, the CEQ), M Pares
Al el OFD, WY, skt Linve e Coriied] Diecioe
Frorn Pakmtan inslings o Corporets Gowernancs P0G
Tha Compsy Sacritary B el b Cortfad Diacr fom
oG
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Role of Chalrman and

Chief Execulive Oflicer

The e of Mon-Becutive Chamman and the CEO ae
kenil nepirats In U an Sporopiate balsnce of
pover, inCresmad AcoourTistiiny and n gester CapEy
of the Bloerd! Jor indepenciont derison mskang.

Dutles of the Chalrman are:
= Toland ano oversaa e Bosrd of Dirocions;

* T laciltane in o oy of Ricriion Dot
rmaragerTent a7 Te Boad, s i rvohe e
B i the: piooess of effettive decision kg Ior
Tha Company;

To i & Sy geaduilion ol Cornfuiry's

marajaTen, praceces s aheencs D e

Carmpirys sirategc plan ord ot

& [ ACCdr D wilh Doy B end 8 and
whan fecpned clat tha maetinga of the Board and
ectings of hhe Shareloiers in scorrdance Wil ey
N o3l ko,

& T SRR, SO AL Wi T COpany
Secrrary Brd T CED. on agend or each meating
of M Bodra:

& o gead comgiance of e meragernen in inglamant
T chaciacnn of e Boatt

» oo citmahy wilh e CEO and peodoe o gnan

o uidanca S e MErREEmant o Mo RS

T el T highwoss alarakris of oomonilu

ORITRINGT;

& ToarGurn Tl The Donngary Nas an oflecie and
il COTTLrRCRIOr Wit RS SPari ok

To arsmen nal now RIS feoahs ariTiTa
nghcion info tho Compnry

Responsibilities of the CEO arae:

& o sgn e enbie Company 0 ha Wison, Masin
ol Siewiegy evolvees by the Bobrd, such tad
raryona Wl iodius P aftors 10 tha SUnoeRs of the
SO

& T mild @ ooeponTe ot and B @ ok ol for
o e Cepesaton

T parioemancs shandinds ko e Comgsary and
oEEnote Moda stanckeds with conficantoa;

* T manags T dhe ey operon of o
Srancial peies) oo sk mensgermant;

* T D 0 rakalionori Dot and amonyg
e Bmioyees of the Compay, e QoverTmeant,
e pandly chan ESnociEtes e tessrs @ oty
shkchoiirs of tho Compary,

T Dol g e S 50 Tl O (el
W0 angua B8 s growth roudh urespeciad &3
oo BE foresmen Fresls, apioiurises and 10 e
e Compsrny s fotut with competinn, markets
prochucts and growd echroiogy:

T S SRR iemen] B0 Il 8 Compatieg
ahariags in e ey and imphamend Tees
stardas nio tha sapal of Tha Comgsmy:

T Dl Tl o (wie Gend g non
DTS AN 1D 00 Tha [EaM W0 Working g
i & Com o JEecon T sea Ta Company 1o
o plalagy s vien [lvough descion and ellacthe
COrrmuicaion

& T S DuCRE 10 R GOt vel RO BUgeoe] T
EATEAY A T CROWTY PrORCTE vl bofs Imanerg
T marags e Companys Capisl Lidkeosy srg
cimuhiy conbal tha Compary's eepandbees:

o T Dl MR G ChieDio DOICE aral
prooackaes of e Company 10 anius compiance of
i protioiunss o ol

& T caison human: maoucs o e Company, T
COmpany's NG noods of hi L. TeEnng
Cormpansalion Cacknges: and 10 CroslE B COmonEE
CulLre S g e (nd o0d i

& By i shecina FR for e Compang

There is & krmal process for appaesl of Board
perinrmarne oS o whike, Annus spprsain s comed
i T i GTLCH PO QLSRG acdresiseng T
Tohowing:

'

ks

s Braes compostion and siucies

= Bouetld eComi 0 nkarnslion;

® Heae('s Eponsiily and patormance;

* Bt Mrborisction willh maragu e o by
f=E L

# Purlormiancd of o B Commimise
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The Qusshornans S ncues e asessment ol tha
Ciarman of 1w Bosrd incicing His shilgy 1o ead te
Board mestges.

The evniuahion mrid isechack are comoiceied mnd
presmied o e Boam, theough e Human Resouoe
g Remunesaion Commiton, K gcUsS0n o M
of FYerQiG AN Wosknesaes

Performance Review of CEQ

Bogr has. gn obigonon 10 sharohclden 10 ongurm
i e Company & oo well. Evaluason of tha CEQ
i thenafore B CONINUOLS DROCeEE And s Armaly
e L Dy e Bt Wi relerance In e
Fesponsbtdties of the CEO" & forisly sppned by
te Bomd.

&1 AGETL, e Boowd aveiueed e CEQ dor e
comeTimerT; i the Vison, bssion and Comonin
Somegy Which hitve kop! e wordonze mabiod

BN COmPTivac i tha Viskon ard Mession of Te
Corrpiny. Tha Boand noted than e CEC promolad Tl
corpeorms cubue ol afics and scoounisbity wim
eflaciie decionn ek and devetpmeant of Pumsn
capital by e futupe ssprton of e Company, The
CEC hes g hardds an sggaoach iowvork ardl keeps e
WATHIOIR energered COuTenaing respect

Amked pmong T Top Perorming CECRS of Paststan for
thap year 201 4 wiressad handsome rlums 0 To
Elskefoltors. Tha Compans shae vale mes o an sl
tim g of P 40424 vt & et copslalnition of
A=, 26.5 biloh. Wihils sbong francial Bass, ha e
2014 womgy the Compary ceclas &5 highes! dradend.
The Compary was onoe sgein mied ior (5 Copomie
Periomanos winning the Comomie Bxceliencs femrd al
e Werngernent Ansociabon of Pakesion, The CED
promcins & batint Boa and oyvrsoos. adhenncs o
Corporsin GoumTinngg

Board Committess

Th Boamd has emebishod Board Comenmons i aess
WA N aRechve Chechunge of B3 dies

Al Boad Commingss &na charsd by and comorss
oty of Moo fhes Direcions. Ofer dinecion: may
s He msting by imd@atoh. Fach commifles
Cpermes uncles a vwitlen specic charer sporoved by
the: Boeyrd,

76

The Crasrman of Sach Dormmiles [rodoes, & delsiad
repor ia-the Bosed siong with tecommenditons of the
Commites.

Management Committess

T Bsrd hat P e Following Maragernent
Committess haaded ty s OFED with ke marpgsment
oozl ancl the Chaimnan of fre Colecte Barparng
Agert - e (A,

Bursrgss Strakagy Commillos

Franea and st Comimitog

Erdarprida Rk Moragarnent Coemmiflon

Fhamein Rescracs ino Fermmeeation Comimcee
Iniorraton ard Techroiogy Corririsioa

Thes Fmphoysss aret Procsss Sadaly Cormiiag

= Erpacorreris Cominitog

The Bowrdl hars Approyvesd chartss ior ol thess
romrnitiees pnd dnoussors and decsons mken al
these momngs aa pinced Bofore the Bom lor porusal
Thiesa Committngs mat &5 [f T chamos

Managing conflict of interest

The Campery in compllance with the Code of
Lomomin Doucemancn Snrmaly SITUmes nd Qo
1 sgred copy of Cooe of Congkuc) sppicatss 12 8ifs
ampicyeas and Direciors. Diseciois & mgured o
dEacsa, Al tha ime of sppaniment & duing hee
1Ew, T desciortps ey hod in ofer oofonls
o, s pee Bhe proyisons of B Cormpenies
Ordrence, T584, sveny direcior b raquirsd] i provee:
o the Boaed compiete detsts regarding ary rmateos
tmrEacian which may bing confict of Ficrest weh the
Compary

(Cionad paring aa datsamired ard announced Dy
e Comgary, racacing e Diacion born desisg

i e sleires of the Cofmpsry, o 10 sach Boaid
Thestriy imvobing amouncemert of riefm sl et
distriaston o sharehoiders or any' offer business
dienimon which colid malenndy afinct the share price
A, il denons e regirad 10 cESCkose oy
bEnCEon in T shives ol the Company Immodisiony
10 T Cormparsy Saceian Al tading in ghates of the
(CFDarTy by T8 DA oF cedithves Bnd o Felaiad
perty batearsons as bl daciceed in Pe fnancial
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by el of riarea] ywas 1eponad dang 2004

Whistle blowing

The Company has soared & whastie Diovwing cullse
T et SN Oeter WennQoong i DIepaling and
roETEning ansans and compkels frercal epors
el s we vl A e il conbibls Sxariis)
o sippo—t s frencisl and sooo ring sestem and
cferatons. Vioindon of rrashers: miemed) i in e Cocde
of Conouct signod byal e empioyess, mary also

o mpornd, Tha enissnment ol whisda Diowng
FILICAUIE B0 UGS i Company's BOTY 10 omact
potertal ke, providing Bnoiher evel of comi and
SRS 10 e Sakshoien

The poiicy provides & imechansm ko employess
o report pressile wiongdongs (o the Comgary
Socretany whow foor ol neprenl or descnmintion
Every iopor 0ime 5 conaiend ond mnstipaing
Tha ‘while DinCass & incknd ifor by Tie Audd
Coeniming

Moy cateeal of waiatier biowandy weve ranirted in 2014,

Thet Comgery o Hes & polcy on “Suggesbon
Systam’, encoungng &l aTpioyees o Mok
mipgestons. These e dincusson andl orgeoyees e
oo remasciedd for fhar inpu,

Shareholder Rights
and Responsibilities

Tre Company orsumes thin &l shershokiers i Toaing
iy and eousnnyy, Tha Cormpany' & commidied io
enguring thal of sharmnoicirs have Bocess io cione,
tedaiie) aned messranGiul informanton. The Compsery

reg ety COMPPLRRCENSS TS Cevelopnania in
by cperalrs 1 B ook axcharges, SECR
press relsases, oanusr 30 shereholders s pEcement
of information o Cormpery’ westmie The: Compery slan
ercourages sharehicer partcpation al the gares
meatngs of the shassholders.

&) snarphaicion ane inviad 10 Deficpate ) tha
Compamy's Qeneral moerting i Derscn Of TFouQ prody,
T Chamman dekars & Shor presermgion

&l sach AGLY 1o shars! oers in LoosEls TeEm on
pesformarce of e Campary. Beeny mafle saquning
appoowval i propossd as a sepeais resobdon
Sreyehiicens pesant me green an opportunty o

ey or Cife! (LBEHCNTS On SEES ferating 1o e
proposed reash tior. The Gosd are m st o
adtirees; Fete o eres and obisn feedback fiom
sharnoteis. Exiemel mcicrs e slso piesent s
requed by

Thay Cormparss AR wis Peld on Maen 25, 2074,
T Solizsngy sore: Bprowed by e Eramhoies

* Franca ssslormons for T yead ondod Docamito
A donk

& Ewacananon of Sl G dhaied @ B 15 par i

w Appoirimant of s AF Fapemon & Gn as exdar
S

* [monaass i T o shara copful and

= s of Dorys honks @ 55,

Ther Exitn Crclnarny Geneeal Meating EOGM) for slection
of chirectirs weet el Despmber D8, 3014

Investor relations policy

and grievance programmse

Ther Gy fe cxrrmilad 19 mairsm highet
stanidaids o colixomls Tarspaersy and dadiosine
ad elieves ol shoud provide reguist. eflscie
and dsr comTmurncaion Wit s sheysholders. An
vesior relion programme Nes: been) put in place o
Rrowclo iy, tmaly and i disciamen o mammanon
Abou Ty Cormpany's Dusiness deyeiopmant ord
partrmancd

Shardhoices ae alsn welcorha i sesk any dlorialion
Hhat ey oy ieguine by conlacing te Compary

= e Hend Cfice — Tebephione Rurmber 031 -
SSEA0HET-5. imomaton f compleints mey also be
07T, N withing or SnoLigh omal. AN eHiors e ke
1o provica e e rEeTRasony Imsche el
£oOmplanis on phofy’ basis.

r




Internal Audit

The Compary has its-own n-nousa Intemal Audit Department which is headed by
a gualified Charlerad Accountant, Intemal Audit reparts direcliy o the Chamman of
fhe ALdit Committes on audit matiers and edministratively 1o the CEQ. Using risk
based sudit methodology Intermal Audit plans its assignments every quarer, which
is reviewed and approved by the Audit Commities,

The key rola of the infamal Audit is o assist e Audit Commities o provide
reasonabla assuance thal the Company 5 mantaining an adequate system

of intemal controds by peiodc reviews of matesial controls and procedures. A
comprehensive Intemal Audit report is presented to the Audit Commities at each
mesting for discussion.

The Board has been kept imormed of the Audit Commities’s: review of ntemal auc
reporis and the management confrols in place and = safisfied with the adequacy of
the Company's intemal contnola.

The Aldit Commitize ensures thal the imdemal sudit unclion has sdequate
resources and appropriaks standing within the Comparny, On an ongoing bass, i
aEs=psses the effectveness of the intemal sudiors, such | as its scope of work and
quaity of audtl reports:
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Report of the Auwdit Commitiee

Composition

Tha Commision i aopointod tey the Boand and & Te
sl B cormgntad of wea Mon-Executive Drecin

M . 2 e - indepencient Nor Exso e
Charmnean

MY, AL Aran Sved
by, Do Cetomin

o e Bl oo who was preace sl e Chasien
of B At conrnilies de nat sesk e-soporamen Al
the ECxE heicd an Diecemiber 08, X114

Tha et Crnorman of the: Comemetiae. W, 8 80
Cniyurn, an incopsncon Mo Execdve Deocior

8 8 Feliosy Mamber of Ina neiiune of Charomsd
Accountarys of Peldaian ICAPY and T irgiine of
Charissed Acoountans of Engiard and Wik DEAEW,,
Thig ol of mermberm & gheen on pages 21 10 24

The B Saostan Ancions as e Sacmstary o e
Corrrates.

Charter of the Commities

The ‘\arrre. ol reference of the Cormmties s ey
gefred m: the Charer of the Cormmities, sebent fantres
of wiach oo strvicsd Desow;

= T o 10 e Boaed T8 apyca it and
pirnowl of aetenl BUcHT:

= o ranacey ey, ral-pearty and anvus rancil
= g

* T v s infomesl oot sysiars ard riamal
i Ranciion

& T morior Complires:-oF SSalilony SouinTiris

Meeting during 2014

Tha Aucl, Commition mes four Bimes ouing e yeir,
The amendianca of e memban S hese mesings &
stated in e e on pa0e T4 of the srnosl epod, Tre
Ciief Fraressd Ot and the Crvied bterral ALeitor
allerved ol rheetings. The edeiral aodior ailenids
mEeings when maters perisrng o ther bnciors
oM L for consade—ion ardl atsncded we mestngs

Gung e yeer,

Role of the Committes

The Auckt Commitipe asssts e Board 10 ef0chly
oY Ul 18 sLpenvEly eSOl esporshitics on
Inacial repoiting and Sofpiancs | indsnal oorenks
B i, el Al aslernal e Rnctiore of e

Compary

Tha Commses has conclced s armes) reses of
tha operatons of T Company o e e endead
Docomber 31, 20 0nd nepants. hat:

& Thag Cormmiling sovowind ol Sppnivsd T cuaniody
At irral francsl siateirerts of the Comnbary afd
rcomErTed Trar o anros o e Boad;

o ADDOORSG Scourbe ol Fowe Daar
congetenly appisd ard o arehoalin atooeing
EEreans wees kit ik prepaieton ol Te frisscal
Steiererils for e yeer arded Decemtser 31, 2044,
wiach presertt darly the sime of aifais, tesults of
operatons, profs, cash bows, and changes o aquity
of tha Company;
Thas el Excc it Cfca ind S Chisl Francial
Otfice b teviewved the nancal ststements o fe
Company, They acknowlecins fheir esponsioiing for
Tue and far preseriabon of the fnancat saiemerts,
acourncy of Iopciong and complanco wit
raguAaions s anplealin aotounling R
* Arcos riing astmates oo based on reasonas
prudant joigmant
& Propar. sorurale ind SoequEs sceouriing s
Fimas bason mmaiaad iy the Compeary
Tz Caorgee, s Sysham of indienal Dol & Sound
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pwc A. F. FERGUSON & CO.

i

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMEBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheat of Al-Ghazi Traciors Limited as al
December 31, 2014 and the reialed profit and loss account, statement of comprehansive
income, cash Aow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes farming
part thereof, for the year then anded and we state that we have cbtained all the information and
explanatlons which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposas of
our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a a}rshm of
internal conirod, and prepare and present the above said statements n conformity with the
approved accounting standards and the reguirements of the Companles Ordinance, 1084, Our
responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these statements based on our audt.

We conducted our audit in accordance with e auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Thess standards require that we plan and perform 1he awdit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the above said statements are free of any matenal misstatement. An audid
inclsdes axamining, on a tesl basis, evidence supporling the amounis and discloswres in the
above sald statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above
said statements. We belleve thal cur audit provides e reasonable basis for our opinien and, after
due verfication, we report that:

{a) i our opinian, proper books of accounis have been kept by the Company as reguired by
the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

[13]] i our opinian:

{ the balance sheal and pfﬂl'l'l. and loss account together with the notes therean
have been drawn up in confermity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are
in agreement with the books of accounts and are further i accordance with
accounting policies consistently applied;

{ify the expenditure incurred during the year was far the purpose of the Company's
i : and

{iii} the business conducted, Investments made and the sxpanditure incurred during
the year were in accordance with the objects of the Company,

-1} in our opinign and o the best of our information and amulﬂing o the axplanalions given
o us, the balance sheet, profit and boss account, statement of comprehensive income,
cash flow statement and staternent of changes in equily together with the noles
forming  part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1884, in the
manner so requirad and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Compamy's affairs s at December 31, 2014 and of the profit, tolal comprahansive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

{dj in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980

(X1 of 19800, was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
aslablished under section T of that Ordinance.

£
Cha A:nnunéms

Karachi
Dated: March 10, 2015
_ Engagemant Pariner: Syad Fahim ul Hasan
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AGTL
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2074
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fized assats

Lang-ierm invastment
Lang-term loans
Long-term deposits

CURREMT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Siock-in-frade
Trade debis
Loans and advances
Short-term deposits and prepayments
Accrued mark-up
Olher recelvables
Taxation
Refunds due from the Government
Investmeants
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Resarves

NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferrad staff benefits - compensaled absences
Slaff retrement banafit
Defarred taxation

CURREMT LIABILITIES

Taxatlon

Trada and other payables
TOTAL LIABILITIES
COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

13
14
15

16
7

33
18

18

2014

2013

Rupeas in thousand

466,751 404 433
42,800 44,800
342 7544
1,785 1,788
511,662 456 566
35,962 15,6449
2160349 1,693,240
13,796 166,306
7B, 706 73,383
32219 1,450
33,886 3,525
6,149 11,457
- 30,669
1,281,074 1,700 416
1,908,870 3,354,256
3,924,709 2,308 497
8477.010 9,367 BET
9,986,692 9,826,433
B0 B2 214 BB2
0,261,674 8,004,277
8,551,405 8,218 950
32108 31,656
29,929 1177
25,870 38,747
7,905 &8 580
1,476 -
1,347 816 1,537 804
1,437,197 1,607 474
9,988,602 9,826,433

The anmexed noles 1 fo 42 form an inbegral parf of these financial slalerments.

ﬁf"' riirl,

ChIEfE:.EIml:I‘uB




PROFIT AND LOSS ACGOUNT

FOR THE YEAD ENDED DEGEMBER 31,207

Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in thousand

Sales 22 8,780,685 9,262 626
Caost of goods sold 23 (6.512,542) (7,193 ,257)
Gross profit 2,268,143 2,069 369
Distribution cost 24 {101,463) (125,208)
Administrative expenses 25 (203, 668) (172,773)
1,863,012 1,771,388
Other income 26 457,184 402,283
Other operating expenses 27 (166,900) (149,081)
2,253,308 2.023 590
Finance cost 2B (1,369) (396)
Profit before taxation 2,251,937 2.023 294
Taxation 29 (BY7,193) (651,804)
Profit after taxation 1,674,744 1,371,490
Earnings per share 30 Rs 27.17 Rs 23.66

The annexed noles 1 to 42 form an inlegral part of hese financial stalements.

/ /

A3 e

Chalrman Chief I_:_;cacul:nla_
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AGTL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAD ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

2014 2013
Rupees in thousand

Profit after taxation 1.574,744 1,371,490
Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified
to Profit or Loss

Remeasurements of post employment
benefit obligations (28,007) (8.232)
Impact of deferred tax 5,488 2,798
(18,519) {5,433}

Items that may be subsequently reclassified
to Profit or Loss - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,556,225 1,366 057

The annexed notes 1 1o 42 form an integral part of these financlal statements.

= { il

Chafrman Chiaf Exacutive
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE ¥YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

Mote 2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

Cash generated from operations 3 1,752 626 1,742.914
Income tax paid (674,444) (570,752)
Increase in deferred staff

benefits - compensated absences 450 3,524
MNet cash from operating activities 1,078,632 1,175, 686

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (104,872) (71.518)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 4,036 5945
Purchase of invastments {248 000) (2,014 427)
Proceeds from disposal of investments 1,900,159 75425
{Placement in) / encashment of term deposits - net (2,100,000) 2,100 000
Return on bank deposits 198,809 414712
Decrease in long-term loans 7,202 11,885
Net cash {used in) / from investing activities (342 BBE) 522 032

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Dividend paid (1,219,754) (1,071,853)
Net (decrease) f increase in cash and cash equivalents (483 788) 625,865
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,903,497 1,277,632
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 1,419,709 1,903 497

The annaxed notas 1 o 42 form an Integral part of these financlal statements.

2 fee L

Chairman Chief Exacutive
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

Share General Unappropriated
capital reserde profit Total

#+———— Rupees in thousand ————»

Balance as at January 1, 2013 214,682 1,000,000 6,711,631 7,926,313

Final dividend (@ Rs 15 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2012 - - (644,047T) (544,047}

Interim dividend (@ Rs 10 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2013 - - (420, 364) (420,364)

Total comprehensive income for the year
anded Decambear 31, 2013

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2013 1,371,480 1,371,490
Other comprehensive loss for the
year ended December 31, 2013 - - (5,433) {5,433)
- - 1,366,057 1,366,057
Balance as at January 1, 2014 214,682 1,000,000 7,004,277 8,218,050

Final dividend (@ Rs 15 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2013 - - (644,047T) (544,047}

Intenm dividend {@ Rs 10 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2014 - - (579,642) (579,642)

Issue of 35 bonus shares
for every 100 shares held 75,139 - {75,139) -

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended Decambear 31, 2014

Profit for the year ended December 31, 20114 - - 1,574,744 1,574,744
Other comprehensive loss for the
year ended December 31, 2014 - (18,519) (18.518)
= - 1,556,225 1,556,225
Balance as at December 31, 2014 280,821 1,000,000 7,261,674 B 551,405

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statemanta.

Yy,

Chief Executive
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORT

2.1

HE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was ncorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now
Companias Ordinance, 1984} as a public limited Company in June, 1983 and is
guated on Karachi and Lahore Slock Exchanges. The regislered office of the
Company is situated at *11th Floor, NIC Building, Abbasi Shaheed Road, Karachi'.
The Company is principally engaged In the manufacture and sale of agricultural
fractors, generators, implements and spare paris.

The Company is a subsidiary of Al-Futtairm Industries Company LLC, LLAE.

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee which is the Company's
functional and prasentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presanted, unless otherase stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved
accounting standards as applicable n Pakistan. Approved accounting standards
comprise of such Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as are nolifled under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and direclives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, In case reguirements differ, the provisions or directives of the
Companies Ordinanca, 1984 shall prevail.

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with approved accounting
standards requires the use of certain crtical accounting estimatas. It also requires
management 1o exercise its judgement i the process of applying the Company's
accounling policies. The maltter imvolving a higher degrea of judgement or
complexity, or area where assumplions and estimates are significant to the financial
staternants are pravisian for taxation and provision for stafl refiramant benefit.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
expanence and olher faclors, including expeclations of fulure events thal are
believad 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.,

There have been no crlical judgements made by the Company's managament in
applying the accounting poficies that would have significant effect on the amounts
racognised in the financial statemants.
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Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncemenis

Mew and amended standards and interpretations that are effective
im the current year

Following amendments fo existing standards and interpretations have been
published and are mandatory for accounting periode beginning on or after
January 1, 2014 and are considered io be relevant to the Company's operations.

IFRIC 21, 'Levies' a new intarpretation is applicable for the Company for the first
time for the financial year beginning on July 1, 2014, sets out the accounting for an
obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax. The interpretation addresses tha
obligating event that gives rise o pay a levy and when should a liabiliy be
recognised. The Company is not currently subject to significant levies so the impact
aon the Company is not material.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards that are considered relevant, but not yet effective

The following are the new standards, amendments o existing approved accounting
standards and new interprelations that will be effective for the periods beginning
January 1, 2015 that may have an impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

IFRS 12, "Disclosures of inferests im other entities’ includes the disclosura
requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint arrangament,
associates, structured entities and other off belance sheet vehicles. The standard
does not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement, aims to improve consisiency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirement for use across IFRSs. The
requirement do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on
how it should be applied where its use s already required or permitted by other
standards within IFRSs. The standard will not significantly affect the defermination
of fair value and its related disclosures in the financial staternents of the Company.

Interpretations to published approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective and are not considered relevant

Standards, amendments fo existing approved accounting standards and new
interpretations have been published that are mandafory for future years. However,
these are not expecied to affect materially the financial statements of the Company
for the accounting penods beginning on the dates prescribed thersin.
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Cwerall valuation policy

These financial statemants hawve been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as disclosed in the accounting policy notes.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fizxed assets are siated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation except
freehold land and capital work-in-progress which are stated at cost.

The cost of leasehold land is amortised ower the period of lease. Depreciation on all
other assets is charged to profit and loss account applying straight-ine method
whereby the cost of an asset less residual value is written off over its estimated
useful life. The useful ife of the assets as estimated by the management is as
follows:

- Leasehold land 90 years

- Building 40 years
Plant and machinery 10 years

- Fumiture and fixtures 4 - 10 years

- Dffice eguipment 10 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Vehicles 4 years

Factory equipments and tools 10 years

The assets’ residual velues and useful fives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate. at each balance shest date.

Maintenance and nommal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when
incusrred. Major renewals and improvements are capilalised and the assets so
replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal / retirement of fixed assets are included in profit and
loss account

Impairment

The camying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. I amy
such indication ewists and where the carying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assels or cash-generating unite are written down fo their
recoverable amount and the resulting impairment is charged to profit and loss
account.

11
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AL-GHAII TRACTORS LTD

Leans, deposits and other debts

These are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given
and are subsequenily measured at amortised cost.

Taxation

Current

Provision for curmrent tax is based on the taxable income at the current rates of
taxation after taking into account tax credits available, if any, in accordance with the
pravailing income tax laws.

Dieferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences
arising between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax liability = generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised o the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credils can be utilised.

Stores and spares

These are valued at average cost. liems in transit are valued at cost comprising
invoice walue plus other charges incurmed thereon.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determinad
on moving average method except for sfock-in-transit which is valued at invoice
value plus other charges incurred therean.

Cost of finished goods includes prime cost and appropriate portion of manufacturing
BAPENEEE.

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sala.

Trade Debts

Trade debts are valued at invoice value, being the fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Provision is made against debts considered doubtful of
recovery.

Investments
Investments of the Company are classified into the following categones:
{iy Held to maturity

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fized maturity
with the Company having positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These
are stated at amortised cost.
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{i} Imvestments at fair value through profit and loss account

These are investments designated at fair value through profit and loss sccount
at inception. Invesiments in this category are classified as current assets if
they are expected fo be realised within twehe months of the balance shest
date.

'Investments at fair value through profit and loss account’ are recognised at
fair value and changes in fair value are taken to profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camed in the balance sheet at cost. For the
purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash,
cheques, demand drafis in hand and balances with banks on cument accounts and
daposit accounts.

Staff retirement beneafits
{iy Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its
permanent employees. The scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that
an employes will receive on retirement subject to a8 minimum gualifying pericd
of service under the scheme.

Conftributions to the gratuity scheme are based on actuarial recommendations.
The latest actuarial walustion of the scheme was camed out as at
December 31, 2014 using the Projected Unit Credit Meathod.

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the
Balance Sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to Other Comprehensive
Income in the periods in which they oocur.

Past-sarvice costs are recognised immediately in income.
(i} Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates an approved contributory provident fund for s
permaneant employees. Equal monthly comtributions are made, both by the
Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the
fair value of the consideration given and received respectively. These financial
assets and Rabilibes are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or
cost, as the case may be.

Any gains and losses on derecognition of financial assets and liabilities anre laken to
income currently.

13
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AL-GHAII TRACTORS LTD

Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences of iis employees on unavailed
balance of leave in the period in which the leave is eamed. The liability recognised
in respect of compensated absences is based on employees last drawn salary.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration received. Thesa are subseguently measured at amortised cost.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange
prewvailing on the date of transaction. Monelary assets and habilities in foreign
currencies ane translated inio Pak Rupee at the rates of exchange approximating to
those prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are taken to
profit and loss account.

Revenue recognition
Sales are recorded on despatch of goods to customers.

Retum on deposits and investmenis is recognised on accrual basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are
incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly afiributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of the qualifying asset. if any, are capitalisad
as parl of the cost of that asset.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognised as lability in the financial
statements in the period im which the dividend is approved.
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FIXED ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Chperating assets

Capital work-in-progress - cil work

Intangible assets

Operating assets

MNote 2014 2013
Rupees in thousand

32 3|z 383 27T
B7.128 21,025
33 211 13

466,751 404 433
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Details of fixed assals disposed of during the year:

Cos Accumuialed Book Sake Mode of Particulars of
depreciation walue  proceeds disposal Purchaser
#———— Rupeesin thousand ———+

Furritune and Tohues 0 a7 158 1@ Company Poicy Mr. Mansoor Alam
- General Misnages Werial
Weragemerd
Furniture and futures 52 30 ] 56 CompanyFolcy M. Khurshiol Wajeed
- Serier Manager Cuafity
Furniture and fotures 200 " B4 B4 Comgany Polcy M. Aocu Rashid
- Genaral Manager
Aggregate of assets
disposed of having book waliss
less Bhan s 50,000 each:

Furniture and Thures £11 T -] 3
Wericles 18235 18288 - 3enn
Compufer ea B3 -

2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
INTAMNGIELE ASSETS

Met Carrying value basis
Opening net book value 131 125
Additions 211 g5
Amortisation (131} (aa)
Closing net book value 211 131

Gross Carrying value basis

Cost 6,714 6,502

Accumulated amortisation (6.503) (6.371)
Met book value 211 131
Remaining useful life in years 1.5 1.8

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

Held to maturity - Certificate of Investment (CO1) 54 800 56 B0O
Current maturity of investment (12,0000 (12,000}
42,800 44 800

This represants investment in COl of Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (SPLCL)
which matured in January 2000, however, encashment proceeds were not received
due to liquidity problem of SPLCL During the year the Company has receved
R 2 million (2013: Rs 11 million) against the outstanding principal amount.
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LONG-TERM LOANS

Loans to employeas
Dealer car loans

STORES AND SPARES

Storas
Spares

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials and components - including

in transit Rs 27203 million

{2013 Rs 109,66 million)
Finlshed goods - tractors and generators 71
Trading stock - spare parts and implements

The above includes a tractor of Rs 0.701 millkon (2013: raw materials and componants

of Rs 0,701 millicn) held by a third parly (dealer).

TRADE DEBTS - considered good

Secured
Unsecured

The age analysis of trade debls i as follows:

Mat yet dua

1 to & manihs

& 1o 12 months
More tham 1 year

2014

2013

Rupees in thousand

342 816
& B,928

342 7544
21,972 8,259
13,990 7,380
35,067 15,640
1,829,670 1,673,338
318,342 8,866
12,337 11,045
2,160,349 1,603,240

2014

2013

Rupees in thousand

4,023 20,936
9,773 145,370
13,796 166,306
- 771
10,577 139,345
1,075 19,250
2,144 -
13,706 166,306

11
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Mite 2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
9, LOANS AND ADVAMNCES - considered good
Loans lo employeas a1 831 1,543
Dealer car loans 9.2 6,334 11,873
Advances io suppliers for goods and senices 71,53 59,977
T8, 795 73,393
9.1 Thes represents cufrenl porlion of inlerest ree loans given 1o employess wnder
employes loan schemes to faciitate purchase of domestic appliances and mator
cycles. The said loans are repayable over a period of 24 fo 36 months and are
secured against provident fund balances.
9.2 Thiz represents curment partion of loans given by the Company to finance the
purchase of cars by dealers. The amount is repayabile in 48 monthly inslallments by
July 2015 carrying interest at the rate of 14% per annum and are secured by joint
regisiration of cars in the name of dealars and the Coampany.
2014 2013
MNote Rupees in thousand
10. SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS
Margin against Letter of cradit 3,502 B0
Prepaymants TIT 645
32,219 1,450
11. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up accrued on bank deposits 33,086 3,525
12, OTHER RECEIVABLES
Cue from Workers' Prafits Participation Funed 121 6,028 11,335
Others 121 121
5,149 11,457
12.1 ‘Workers' Profits Participation Fund
At beginning of the year 11,336 5,667
Allpcation far the year (120,942) (108 664)
(109, 608) (102,997)
Less: Amaunt paid during the year 115,634 114,333
6,028 11,338




Nate: 2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
13. REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT
Sales tax 1,032107 1,450,449
Special escise duty 248967 248,967
1,281,074 1,709,416
14. INVESTMENTS
Held 1o maturity - Certificate of Invesiment 4 12,000 12,000

Invesbtments at fair valua through profit
and loss accournt 14.1 1,897,970 3,342 256

1,209,970 3,354,256

14.1 These represent investmeants in open ended quoted mutual funds. The fair valua of
these invesiments is based on quoted market price prevailing at the balance sheet
date. The details of investments are as follows:

Units 2044 2013

2014 2013 Rupees In thousand
23323268 41,641071  ABL Cash Fund 244,057 416,731
71,658 2672682 Askari Soversign Cash Fund 80,868 260,408
1,098,673 568,125 Firsl Habib Cash Furd 114,762 56,871
3,335,253 6,060,802 HEL Money Market Fund 348,110 612,688
1669217 3713048 MOE-Cash Managernent Opfimizer 194,953 371,485
4,646,165 9,408,221 Meazan Cash Fund 241,182 471,308
1251 46T 2032592  Mosran Soverzign Fund 188,383 102,442
3133608 61571424 NAFAMoney Market Fund 356,919 B16,442

1.425,002 4,208,510 A-Ameen slamic Sowereign Fund
(formerty UBL lslamic Soversign Fund) 147 GBS 424 872

73854302 131877483 1,897,970 3,342,256
Maote 2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
15. CASH AND BANK BALAMNCES
With banks an
= Current accounts 1,008,179 91,784
= Deposit accounts 151 2,695,551 1,730,544
Cash in hand 171 234
Demand drafts in hand 220,808 485,935

3,924 704 2,308 497

154 Al December 31, 2014, the mark-up rates on PLS savings and term deposit
accounts range from 7.25% to 10.25% per annum (2013: 6% 1o 10% per annum).
The term deposits will mature in 2015,
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2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
16. SHARE CAPITAL

16.1 Authorised Share Capital

120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each
(2013 60,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each) B0, 000 300,000

16.1.1  During the year, the Company increased its authorised share capital from
60,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each to 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. &
each pursuant to special resolution passed by the members at Annual General
Meeling held on March 25, 2014,

16.2 Iszsued, subscribed and paid up capital

Ordinary shares of
Rs 5each 2014 2013
2014 203 Rupeeas in thousand

4,500,000 4,500,000 Shares allotied for

conalderation pald in cash 22,500 22.500
53,464,201 38,435,445 Shares allotted as

bornws shares 267,31 102 182
57 964, 201 42,9365 445 289,821 214 652

16.3 Movement in Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of
Rs 5 each 2014 2013
2014 2013 Rupees in thousand

42 936,445 42935 445 Opening shares

autstanding 214,682 214,682
15.027,756 = Bonus shares aliotted 75,139
57,964,201 42 936,445 289,821 214,682
16.4 During the year, the Company issued bonus shares in the ratio of 35 shares for

evary 100 shares hald.

16.5 Az al Decamber 31, 2014 Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC, UAE | the holding
company and CHWH Global MN.V., Metherands, an associated company hald
28.992.705 (2013 21.476,078) and 25,022,379 (2013: 18.535,096) shares of Rs. 5
each respectively.




7.

18.

19,

10.1

20.

21.

Annual Report 2014

2014 2013
Miote Rupess in thousand
RESERVES
Revenue resarve - Ganaral 1,000 000 1,000 000
Unappropriated profit 7.261.674 7004277
326115?4 8,004 277
DEFERRED TAXATION

Credit / {(Debit) balance arising on account of

- accelerated tax depreciation

allowances 46,483 47,358

- deferred staff benafits -
compensated absences (11.237) {10,763}
- staff retirement benefits {B.376) 112
25 870 36,747

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 086,316 1.078,988
Accrued liabilities AT 108,395
Customers” and dealers’ advances 36.010 58,841
Dividend payable 191 27 88T 24,052
Deposits 30,507 35,032
Taxes deducied at source 14 238 10,988
Waorkers' Welfare Fund 54, 205 49 558
Royalty payable o CNH Global M.V 133.612 45470
Others 30.764 36,521

1347 816 1,537 8B4

This includes uncleaimed dividend amounting ft© Rs 2258 million
{2013: Rs 22.71 million}.
COMMITMENTS

Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2014
amounted to Rs 1.06 million (2013: Rs 10.24 million).

UNFUNDED BANKING FACILITIES

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as al December 31, 2014
amounted to Rs 2.65 billion (2013: Rs 3.20 billion) of which unutilised balance at
year end amounted to Rs 2.39 billion (2013: Rs 2.36 billion).

The above mmmangements are secured by way of pani-passu charge against
hypothecation of Company's stock-in-trade and book debts.
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22. SALES
2014 2013
Trading Trading
Tractors goods Total Tractors goods. Total
- Rupees In thousand -
Local sales 8, T3, 837 112,511 E.000,%0  H0,22545 TTEE  I0.7SE.404
Expart saies 73,853 11,307 05,040 36,834 36,034
007,290 124,430 9,991,700 10,230,379 77,838 10,390,310
Less: Commission 108 227) [T 1110, 0T [RELT.TE] {1, =38) £ 138 8TH)
and dscounts
Sales Tax {1,040, 133) (#4857 | 11,000,558 (529, 332) [7.382) o, T4y
11, 138, 308) (8,737 (1.171,1031  {1,004.574) 8,718} (1073883
0,071,554 106,781 6,700,000 5, 153,405 08,221 5 26e 020
2014 2013
23. COST OF GOODS S0LD Rupees in thousand
Manufaciured goods
Ranw materials and components consumed 6,243 344 6,584 131
Salaries, wages and benefils 177.066 180,563
Charge for defined bensafit plan 2913 2 563
Charge for defined contribution plan 2,508 2,703
Stores and supplies 135,756 143,360
Royalty and technical fee 88,133 91,183
Insurance 2,638 2,540
Depreciation 31,350 20,035
Fuel, power and electncity 42,401 43,774
Repairs and maintenance 25,840 26,960
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment 4,573 7.238
Rent, rates and taxes 2078 2,851
Communication B4 B73
Printing and stationery 1,650 2. 767
Oihers 3,853 3,550
Cost of goods manufactured 6,766,683 7,143,200
Opening stock of finished goods B.8G6 16,288
Closing stock of finished goods (318.342) (8.566)
6,457,207 7,150,622
Trading goods
Oipening stock 11,045 3,818
Purchases 56,627 40 862
67672 53,680
Closing stock (12.337) (11,045)
55,335 42,635
6,512 542 7,183,257
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Maote

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, wages and benefiis
Charge for defined benafit plan
Charge for defined contribution plan
Insurance

Depreciation / amartisation

Fuel. power and elactricity
Travelling. vehicle running and entertainment
Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes
Communication

Advertisernent and promotion

After sales sxpense

Freight charges

Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery

Others

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits

Charge for defined benefil plan

Charge for defined contribution plan

Insurance

Depreciation

Travelling. wehicle running and enterainment
Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Communication

Auditors’ remuneration 25.1
Advertising

Legal and professional charges

Printing and siatiocnery

Dionation 252
Others

2014

2013

Rupees in thousand

61,863 64,802
1,508 1,006
1,430 1,385

TG 71
5433 5,138
3,110 1,266

10,408 11,755

1,127 640
gr2 1,146
1,414 1,365
1,634 1,280
aa12 8978
1,503 23,860
43 13
1.732 1.785
489 G609
101,463 125,208
147,097 124,340
3,690 1,022
3,124 2,036
40 3z
5427 4,828
8,468 11,737
472 715
9,10 10,770
5,450 5,252
2,397 2,168
2,897 -
7268 4,124
6,480 3,400
150 -
62D 450
203,668 172,773
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Mote
2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
251 Auditors” remuneration
Audit fee 1,300 1,200

Fee for limited review of hall yearly financial
statements, certification for compliance with Code
of Carporate Governance, cerlifications for

governiment and other agencles and other services B15 730
Out of pockel expenses 282 238
2387 2,168

25.2 Mone of the Directors or their spouses had any interest in the donea.

26, OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Return on deposit accounts 229270 225,925
Revalsation gain on investments
at fair value through profit and loss account 138,014 149,975
Gain on disposal of investments at fair value
theugh profil and loss account 66,859 2,550
Oihers 3.563 3304
438 OB 281,644

Income from other assets

Scrap sales 9. 768 12,551

Profit on disposal of fiked assels 3.692 4,380
Discount received 4, 854 265

Oihars 164 3,243

18,458 20,430

457,184 402 283

27. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Warkers' Profits Participation Fund 120,842 108 G4

‘Workers' Welfare Fund 45 958 41,317

166,900 149,981
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FINAMCE COST

Bank charges and commission

TAXATION

Current
- for the year

- pror year
Defared

Relationship between tax expense and
accounting profit:

Accounting profit before tax

Tax at applicable rate of 33% (2013: 34%)
Effect of final tax on exports

Effect of income at reduced rate

Others
Effect of prior year

EARMINGS PER SHARE

Profit after taxation attributable to
ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
in issue during the year (in thousand)

Eamings per share

2014

2013

Rupees in thousand

1,360 306
678,582 640,000
- 13.511
{1,380) {1,707)
677.103 651,804
——
2,251,937 2,023,284
743,130 687,020
{5.462) {2.031)
(67 452) (51,850)
6,968 4,263
- 13.511
677.103 651,804
1,574,744 1,371.400
57,064 57.964
Rs 27.17 Rs 23.66

The weighted average shares at December 31, 2013 have been increased to reflect

the bonus shares issued during the year.

A diluted eamings per share has not been presented as the Company does not hawe
any convertible instruments in issue as at December 31, 2013 and 2014 which would
hawve any effect on the earnings par share if the option to convert exercised.
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2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 2,251,837 2,023,204

Add [ (less): Adjustment for non-cash charges
and other items

Depreciation ! amortisation 42210 38,001
Profit on disposal of ficed assels (3,6082) (4,380)
Gain on disposal of investments at

fair value through profit and loss account (66, 859) (2,550)
Revaluation gain on investments at

fair value through profit and loss account (139,014} (1408,975)
Returm on bank deposits (229 270) (225 925)

1,855,312 1,679,465

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes.

Decrease | (Increase) in current assets

Stores and spares (20,313) 5470
Stock-in-trade (467,100} {150,008)
Trade debts 152,510 220,252
Loans and advances (3,403) 2,501
Short-term deposits and prepayments (30, 769) (104)
Cither receivables 5,308 2277
Refunds due from the Government 428 342 (T1.547)
62,575 875
Increase in cument liabilities

Trade and other payables (165,261) 54 608
(102 6BE) 63,449

1,752 626 1,742,914

32 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand 171 234
At banks in

- Current accounts 1,008,179 091,784

- Deposit accounts 190,551 1,325 544

1,188,730 1,417,328

Demand Drafts in hand 220,808 485,935

1,419,709 1,803,487
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STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

As stated in note 2.12 (i) the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme
for all its permanent employees. The scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement subject to a8 minimum qualifying pericd of
service under the scheme. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is camied out every year
and the latest actuanal valeations of the scheme was carried out as at December 31,
2014,

Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust
Act, 1882; the Companies Ordinance, 1984; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules
under the trust deeds. Responsibility for governance of the Plan, including investment
decisions and contribution schedules, lies with the Board of Trustees. The Company
appoints the tnustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.

The latest actuarial valeation of the Plan as at December 31, 2014 was carried out
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Details of the Fund as per the actuarial
valuation are as follows:

2014 2013
Rupees in thousand
Balance sheet reconciliation as at

December 31
Presaent value of defined benefit obligation 169,675 138,269
Fair value of plan assets {129, 746) (137,002)
29 920 1,177
Movement in the defined benefit obligation
Obdigation as at January 1 138,260 117,087
Curmrent service cost 7,973 5,916
Interest expense 16,168 13,156
Remeasurement cn obligation 25,106 T7.803
Bensfits paid (17.841) {5,383)
Obdigation as at December 31 169,675 138,268
Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value as at January 1 137,002 125,026
Interest income 16,021 13,082
Remeasurement on plan assets (2,201) (334)
Employer contributions 7375 4,706
Benefits paid {17.841) {5,383)
Fair value as at December 31 139,746 137,002
Expense recognised in
profit and loss account
Current service cost 7.973 5,016
Interest expense | (income) 147 64

8,120 5,580
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2014 2013
Remeasurement recognised in Rupees in thousand
other comprehensive income
Experience losses (25,106) (7.803)
Remeasurement of fair value
of plan assats (2,801) {338}
Remeasuremeants (28,007} (B8,232)
Met recoegnised liability / (asset)
Balance as at January 1 1177 (7.920)
Expense for the year 8,120 5,580
Empiloyer contributions (7,375) (4,706}
Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income 28,007 B,232
Balance as at December 31 20,920 1,177
14 2013
Compaosition of plan assets: Rupees n % Rupees in b
thousand thousand
Term Deposits E3,506 o83 125908 .64
Oithears. [inciude bark balance) 55,140 LAY 11.184 B.16
134,746 100,00  137.092 100.00
Actuarial assumptions 2014 2013
Expectad rate of increase in salaries
- Management staff 10.5% 10.5%
- Mon-managemeant staff 10.5% 11.0%
Discount factor used 10.5% 12.5%

Pre-Retirement mortality was assumed to be SLIC {2001-05) for males and females,
as the case may be, but rated down one year.

The Company ensures asset / iability matching by investing in shori-term deposits and
does not use derivatives io manage its risk.

The expected returmn on plan assets has been determined by considering the expecied
returns available on the assets underlying the current imvestment policy.
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Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation fo changes in the weighted principal
Bssumplions is:
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumplion assumptlion

Rupees in thowsand
Descount rate at December 31 1% 162,253 178,087
Future salary increases 1% 178,543 161,721

If longevity increases by 1 year, the resultant decrease in obligation is insignificant.

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding
all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely fo occur, and changes in
some of the assumplions may be comelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefil obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined bensafit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting penod) has been applied as when calculating the
gratuity liabifity recognised within the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous period.

Historical information

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
e — Rupess In thousand ——
As at Decemiber 31
Present value of defined benett
cligation 108,673 138,208 117,087 101,984 a7.881
Fair value of plan assels (139,748)  (137,082) {123.026) (1184400 [(111.8410)
Dafcit / {suplus) 29,829 1,177 (7.925) (10,240) (13,026
Enperience adustments
Gain / {loss) on obligaticn (25, 108) (7.853) {3,827} 3489 2387
{Loss) on plan asssts {2,801) (333 (3.202) (a2 (1088}

28,007 i8.233) 18 8251 23T TiB

The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depend
upon the asset portfolio of the fund, at the beginning of the period.

As per actuarial advice, the Company is expected to contribute Rs 9.891 million towards
gratuity fund in 2015 (2014: Rs 6.05 million).

The waighted average duration of non-management employees is 7.81 years and of
management employess is 3.00 years.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan.

Al December 31, 2014 Less han  Beby 1- Beh 2- 15- Orver 10 Total
a year 2 yoors 3 ymars: 0 years eSS
- Rupees in thousand -
Redrement benef plan 80,407 10,880 45,741 65,000 100,003 373,857
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were camed out with related parties during the year:

2014 2013
Relationship MNature of transactions Rupees in thousand
i. Holding company: Dividend paid 612,068 536,02
il. Otherrelated paries: Dividend paid 528,250 463377
Rooyalty paid - 111,794
Contribution to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Staff Provident Fund 7,062 7024
Contribution fo Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Employees’ Graturty Fund T.375 4,708
. Key management
personnel: Salaries and other employes benefits 139,858 130,340
Retirement benefits 6,885 5378

The outstanding balances of related parties as at December 31, 2014 are included in
trade and other payables and other receivables respectively.

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounis charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including
all benefits, to the Chief Executive., Directors and Executives of the Company are as
follows:

Chief Executive Director Executives
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
«— Rupeesinthousand — &

Managerial remuneration 59,858 18,458 T.T42 2871 34,155 20,164

Bonus and ex-gratia 4,750 35,100 74 6010 4.083 28,304
House Rent B,550 7.020 1,304 1,202 TATT 8,150
Ltilities 1,900 1,560 310 267 1,662 1,811
Retirement bensfits 3.388 2,248 562 400 2851 2,730
Leave passage 3,340 3,160 L ] 309 2420 1,003
Orther expenses - - 48 48 852 034
81,782 67,542 11,365 10,987 53,600 64,176
Mumber of persons 1 1 1 1 12 11

Tha Chief Executive, Director and Executives are also provided with Company
maintained cars and are entitled to medical benefits and club subscription in
accordance with their entittements.
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FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial assets and liabilities by categorny and their respective maturities

Interes | Mark-up bearing Mo Imterest bearin Total
Maturity Maturity Sub-total Maturity Maturity  Sub-totl
uptoone  afterone uptoone  afer one
year year year year
* Rupees in -

FIMANCISAL ASSETE
Leoans and recefvabies.
Loors ard advances 5334 - &334 B3 MI 1,273 T 0T
Depoesis - - - 31,002 1,709 33,23 3323
Tradie dabls - - - 13,788 - 13,788 13,788
Acorued markc-un - - - g - 33 =88 335 588
DOther ecevables - - - 21 - 12 121
Cash and bank balances 2,005, 551 - 2,005, 551 1,229,158 - 1,228,138 3.924 705
Invesiments
- Hizid I masrity

at amorised cost 1Z.000 4Z 00 4,000 - - - 0e.600
- AR Rair walus

through profit and loas - - - 1,027 570 - 1.887 870 1.887 870

4 2713880 4T 800 2,708, 0ed 3,207 404 2,13 3,208,553 5.500 300
T s SR SR

—— e T
o o N 51,73 5,008, 143 4,052, 308 2405 4084 813 ]

FIMANCIAL LIABSLITIES
Al amortised cost

Trade and oiher payabies - - - 5,243 388 - 1243353 1243 353
oy ] 2 c - 1,243 385 - 1243, 385 1,243, 3%
e s e 0 2 = 0
3 . . s 1,418 407 = 1,490 8857 1,400,487
Off balance shest Rems
Firandal commitments:
Canfracis for capital
expandhre 1083
LeSers of credB and
Quaranies me s
i 202,057
ety
i3 545,858
et

The effective mark-up rates for the monetary financial assets are mentioned in
respective notes to the financial statements.

Concentrations of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting
date if counterparties failed o parform as contracted. Out of the total financial assats
of Ris. 5.066 billion (2013: Rs. 5.901 bilion) the financial assets exposed to the credit
risk amount to Rs. 5.745 billion {(2013: Rs. 5415 billion) which mainly comprise of
balances with banks and Mutual Funds of Asset Management Companies (AMCs).

The Company places suwrplus funds with various reputed banks and AMCs having
minimum credit ratings of A-1 and AM-2 respectively as assigned by credit rating
agencies. The Company monitors its exposure o a single bank or AMC and their
respective ratings on continuous basis.
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The Company’s products are mainly sold against cash or demand drafis issued by
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited (ZTBL) and certain cther commercial banks. Henca, tha
Company believes that it is not exposed to cradit risk against tractor sales. As of
December 31, 2014 there is no past due or impaired balance and the carrying
amount of rade debts relates to independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default.

Loans to employees and dealers are not exposed to any material credit risk. Loans 1o
employees are secured against their retirement benefits while All Pakistan Fiat / Mew
Holland Tractor Dealers Association stands surety for dealers loans.

Other receivables are not exposed to any significant credit nsk.

Deposits have been placed mainly with gowvernment institutions, hence exposed o no
significant credit risk.

The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparts.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk reflacts the Company's inability in raising funds to meset commitmenis.
The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and balances with
banks. As at December 31, 2014 there is no maturity mismatch between financial
assets and Eabilities that expose the Company to liquidity risk.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign curmency risk arises mainly whera receivables and payables exist due to
transactions with foreign undertakings. Mo payables were exposed to foreign curmency
risks included in trade and other payables as at Decamber 31, 2014.

As the Company has mno foreign cwrrency assels or fisbilities as at
December 31, 2014, no sensivity analysis is presentad.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in the market interest rates. As at December 31, 2014, the Company's
interast bearing financial assets amounted to Rs 4.655 billion (2013: Rs 5.148 billion)
and had the interest rate varied by 400 basis points (2013: 100 basis poinis) with all
the other variables hald constant, profit before tax for the year would have been
approximately higher / lower by Rs 206.03 million (2013: Ris 49.32 million).



v}

ar.

38.

30.

Annual Report 2014

Fair wvalues of the financial instruments

The carmying valees of all the financial instruments reflected in the financial
statements are at fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability
o continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The capital structure of the
Company is equity based with no financing through long term or short term
borrowings.

2014 2013
PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Plant capacity (single shift) - units 30,000 30,000
Actual production - units 13,014 14,055

Actual production of trectors varies in fine with the market demand.

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The following information is based on latest un-auvdited financial statemants of the
Fund:

2014 2013
Rupees in thousand

Size of the fund - Total assets 225 526 218,025
Percentage of investments made 98. 7% 98.7%
Fair value of investmeants 272 628 216,004

The cost of above imvestments amounted o Rs 181 million
{2013: Rs 186 million).
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The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

2014 2013 2014 2013
Percentage Rupees in thousand
Term finance cerificate 32.9% 28.8% T3.276 62,278
Term deposil recolpls 63.3% 65.0% 140,819 140,375
Saving account with bank 3.8% 6.2% 8,531 13,437

222 626 216,094

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the
provisions of Section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules
formulated for this purpose.

2014 2013
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Mumber of employees at 31 December 353 373
Average number of employvess during the year 361 374
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 12, 2015 have proposed a
final cash dividend of Rs 15 per share amounting to Rs 86948 milllon (2013: Rs 15
per share amounting fo Rs 644,05 million) subject to approval of the Company in
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for Issue on February 12, 2015 by the
Board of Directors.

yawi

Chief Executive
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GST
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Annual General Meeting

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

Board of Directors

Cumulative Annual Growth Rate

Collective Bargaining Agent

Code of Corporate Governance

Central Depository Company

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Intemnal Auditor

Case New Holland

Corporate Soclal Responsibility

Dera Ghazl Khan

Eamnings before Interest and Taxation

Eamings before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortization
Extra Ordinary General Mesting

Eamings per Share

Enterprise Resource Planning

Federal Board of Bevenue

Gross Domestic Product

Gross Profit

General Sales Tax

High Efficiency Irrigation System

Horsepower

Human Rescurces

Human Resource and Remuneration

High Speed Diesel

Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
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IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IMF International Monetary Fund

=0 International Organization for Standardization
IE Information Technology

KSE Karachi Stock Exchange

LDO Light Diesel Cil

LSE Lahore Stock Exchange

MAF Million Acre Feet

MAP Management Association of Pakistan
MFN Most Favoured Mation

MIS Management Information System

MP Met Profit

P Pre Delivery Inspection

FICG Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
PR Public Relations

SECP Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
TEVTA  Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority
uTs Uitimate Tensile Strength

WPPFF  Workers' Profit Participation Fund

WWF Workers Welfare Fund

ZTBL Zaral Taragiati Bank Limited
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To request infoemation or submit a comment / guerny to the Company, please compiste the
foliowing and retum this page to-

Company Secretary

Al Ghazi Tractoes Limied,
11ih Floor NICL Buiding
Abbasi Shaheed Road,
Karachi.

Email: sobika. zubair@algharitractors.com

Comment f Cuery

Marme :
Permanent hMailing Address

Contact Numbers (Ted)
(Fax)

Emai
Mame of Compary

{if Applicable)

Designation
I Applicabie)

Comparny Address
{If Applicabie)
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AL - GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

I/ WE

of B B B B S

a member(s) of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited and holding .

ordinary shares, as per Register Folio —
P A MU oo om0 s i
of e

or failing him

o e TR e D escroa A i S R R e i
to vote for me/us and on mylour behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Aprl 22, 2015 at 15:00 hrs. and at any adjournment
thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2015,

Five
Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of
Member(s)

Important;

1. A member entitled o attend a General Meeting entilled to appoint a proxy to attend and vole
instead of him. Mo person shall act as proxy (except for a corporation) unless he is entitled 1o be
presant and vole in his own ight.

2. Tha instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his atiornay duly
autharized in wriling. If the membar & a conporation its common seal (il any) should be affixed to the
instrument.

3. The proxies shall be depassled at the Registered Office of the Company nat less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting

147



AlGhazi Tractors Limited ’
11" Floor, N.L.C.L. Building

Abbasi Shaheed Road

Karachi. 74400

| CORRECT

| POSTAGE |

bicorroin ]
’ The Company Secretary
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